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PCC for Suffolk 4 Statement of Responsibilities 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Suffolk (PCC for Suffolk) 
Responsibilities 

The PCC for Suffolk must: 

• Arrange for the proper administration of the PCC for Suffolk’s financial affairs and ensure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. That officer is the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO PCC);

• Manage its affairs to ensure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets;

• Approve the Statement of Accounts;
• Ensure that there is an adequate Annual Governance Statement.

I approve the following Statement of Accounts: 

Tim Passmore 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Suffolk 

The Chief Financial Officer of the PCC for Suffolk Responsibilities 
The CFO PCC is responsible for preparing the Statement of Accounts for the PCC for Suffolk in 
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom based on International Financial Reporting Standards (“the Code”). 

In preparing this statement of accounts, the CFO PCC has: 

• Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
• Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
• Complied with the Code of Practice and its application to local authority accounting.

The CFO PCC has also: 

• Kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Certified by Chief Financial Officer of the PCC for Suffolk 

I certify that this statement of accounts has been prepared in accordance with proper accounting 
practice and presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the PCC for Suffolk at 31 March 
2018, and its income and expenditure for the year to that date. 

Chris Bland CPFA 
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NARRATIVE REPORT 
 

This Narrative Report provides information about the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Suffolk and Suffolk Constabulary (together being the PCC Group), including the key issues affecting 
the Group and its accounts. It also provides a summary of the financial position at 31 March 2018 and 
is structured as below: 

1. The policing context for Suffolk 
2. Impact of the governance arrangements on the financial statements of the PCC and Chief 

Constable 
3. Explanation of the financial statements 
4. The 2017/18 revenue and capital budget process 
5. Financial performance 
6. Non-Financial Performance 
7. Looking forward 

 
1. The policing context for Suffolk 

Information about the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Suffolk 

Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act) the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Suffolk (PCC) and the Chief Constable (CC) of Suffolk Constabulary were established 
as separate legal entities. Corporate governance arrangements for the PCC and Chief Constable have 
been reviewed and a commentary on their effectiveness is set out in their Annual Governance 
Statements which are published alongside these Statements of Accounts. 

The responsibilities of the PCC, determined by the Act, include: 

• Publishing a Police and Crime Plan 
• Holding the Chief Constable to account for the running of the Force 
• Agreeing the police budget for the year and the level of the precept 
• Working with partner organisations e.g. criminal justice agencies and building on collaboration 

arrangements with other organisations 
• Publishing an Annual Report setting out progress against strategic priorities in the Police and Crime 

Plan 
 

For accounting purposes, the PCC for Suffolk is the parent entity of the Chief Constable of Suffolk and 
together they form the PCC for Suffolk Group.  
 
Tim Passmore was originally elected in 2012 as the PCC for Suffolk, and was subsequently re-elected 
in May 2016.  The Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for 2017/18 were approved by the PCC in 
January 2017.  
 
The PCC is held to account by the Police and Crime Panel, which scrutinises the actions and decisions 
of the Commissioner. Formal public meetings between the PCC and the Chief Constable are held every 
two months. An independent Audit Committee has also been established in accordance with 
recommendations from the Home Office and CIPFA. 
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The County of Suffolk  
 
 (See Figure 1 - Principal police stations are marked in blue). 
 

 

Suffolk is a rural county of eastern England with a land area of 1,466 square miles. Located about 60 
miles north east of London, it is bordered by Norfolk to the north, Cambridgeshire to the west and Essex 
to the south. The North Sea marks the eastern border of the county.  
 
Ipswich is the largest town and is the major economic, social and cultural hub of the county. Lowestoft, 
Bury St. Edmunds, Newmarket and Felixstowe also present specific policing needs related to the nature 
of their industries, such as tourism in Lowestoft, the horse racing industry in Newmarket and Britain’s 
biggest and busiest seaport in Felixstowe.  
 
Suffolk Constabulary polices a population of over 750,000 residents. The county’s population has grown 
by 9.8% over the last 14 years and is expected to rise over the next five years to an estimated 780,000 
residents. The Suffolk population is projected to age over the next few years. By 2021 persons aged 45 
years and over are expected to form over 50% of the population, compared to around 47% in 2012. 
The proportion of minority ethnic communities in Suffolk has risen from 2.8% in 2001 to 4.8% in 2011, 
with the greatest proportions in Ipswich and Forest Heath. The Constabulary continues to respond to 
the changing nature of Suffolk’s population by ensuring policies take account of equality and diversity.  
 
Suffolk contains several sites of policing significance including: The Port of Felixstowe, British Telecom 
Research and Development facility, two US Air Force Bases and Sizewell B nuclear power station. The 
process to decommission Sizewell A is ongoing, whilst the agreement to develop Sizewell C will bring 
additional demands in terms of a temporary increase to the local population as well as the continuance 
of routine policing.  
 
Tourism plays a key role in the economy of Suffolk. In 2011 tourism was worth £1.084 billion to the 
economy and provided nearly 30,000 jobs. By 2016, the value of tourism increased to £1.85 billion and 
there were 38,369 associated jobs. 
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Collaboration and partnership working 
 
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 places duties on chief officers and policing bodies 
to keep collaboration activities under review and to collaborate where it is in the interests of the 
efficiency and effectiveness of their own and other police force areas.  
 
Suffolk Constabulary’s primary partner for collaboration is Norfolk Constabulary. A joint strategy exists 
which outlines the collaborative vision for Suffolk and Norfolk, and provides a strategic framework within 
which collaborative opportunities are progressed.  
 
The two police forces have an extensive collaboration, with the programme of collaborative work 
delivering a number of joint units and departments in areas such as major investigation, protective 
services, custody, and back office support functions.  
 
Areas of collaboration outside of Norfolk/Suffolk include Eastern Region Special Operations Unit 
(ERSOU), a specialist unit with a remit for tackling serious and organised crime in the Eastern Region. 
ERSOU comprises of resources from the following police forces: Norfolk, Suffolk, Essex, 
Cambridgeshire, Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire. There is also a 7 Forces Strategic Collaboration 
Programme currently scoping other areas for collaboration and savings. 
 
The Policing and Crime Act 2017 received Royal Assent on 31 January 2017. The Act brings with it a 
duty in England for emergency services to collaborate. It also gives the opportunity for PCCs in England 
to take over the governance of their local fire and rescue services should a business case demonstrate 
this is in the interests of the local communities.  This is an issue that the PCC will keep under review. 
 
Partnerships 

 
The PCC and Constabulary are involved in many partnership arrangements at a number of levels from 
Strategic Boards, such as the Health and Wellbeing Board, to operational working groups. These are 
all aimed at ensuring the PCC and Constabulary fulfils its statutory responsibilities for partnership 
working, as well as ensuring it continues to be effective and efficient by working together with partners 
and key stakeholders to ensure service delivery continues to be high quality. 

 
Commissioning 

 
The PCC can commission services that:  
a) secure, or contribute to securing, crime and disorder reduction in Suffolk; 
b) are intended to help victims or witnesses of, or other persons affected by, offences and anti-

social behaviour. 
 
This is in accordance with the provisions in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  In 
applying this provision, the PCC ensures that the services commissioned are also consistent with the 
Suffolk Police and Crime Plan 2017–2021.   
 
Since 2012 two primary grant awarding funds have been utilised in Suffolk. The first is grant funding in 
relation to local commissioning of Victims’ Support Services awarded annually by the Ministry of Justice. 
This grant is ring-fenced and must be used for commissioning victims services. 
 
The second, the Crime and Disorder Reduction Grant Fund, was established by the PCC in 2013 for 
the purpose of commissioning services in accordance with the statutory power outlined above.  The 
PCC allocates part of this fund to the “PCC’s Safer Suffolk Fund” which is administered by Suffolk 
Community Foundation.   

 
All grants awarded include success criteria (e.g. intended outcomes, milestones, risks, etc.) and how 
the initiative for which funding is sought will deliver clear and measurable outcomes against Police and 
Crime Plan objectives. Grant decisions are published on the PCC website.  All grant recipients report 
on the outcomes and progress of projects. Depending on the nature and amount of grant, recipients 
may also be required to report to public accountability meetings (e.g. the Accountability and 
Performance Panel). 
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The performance of service providers has been regularly reviewed and monitored against proposed 
outcomes/outputs. Where appropriate, services are assessed using the perceptions of victims of crime 
in terms of their satisfaction with the services and the extent to which they have been supported to cope 
and recover.  

 
Value for money and efficiency also features in the evaluation of services and commissioning of 
services.  

 
2. Impact of the governance arrangements on the Financial Statements of the PCC and Chief 

Constable 
 
The International Accounting Standards Board framework states that assets, liabilities and reserves 
should be recognised when it is probable that any ‘future’ economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to or from the entity. At the outset the PCC took responsibility for the finances of the whole 
Group and controls the assets, liabilities and reserves, which were transferred from the former Police 
Authority. With the exception of the liabilities for employment and post-employment benefits this position 
has not changed and would suggest that these balances should be shown on the PCC’s Balance Sheet. 
 
The Scheme of Governance and Consent sets out the roles and responsibilities of the PCC and Chief 
Constable, and also includes the Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders. As per these 
governance documents all contracts and bank accounts are in the name of the PCC. No consent has 
been granted to the Chief Constable to open bank accounts or hold cash or associated working capital 
assets or liabilities. This means that all cash, assets and liabilities in relation to working capital are the 
responsibility of the PCC, with all the control and risk also residing with the PCC. To this end, all working 
capital is shown in the accounts of the PCC and Group. 
 
The PCC receives all income and makes all payments from the Police Fund for the Group and has 
responsibility for entering into contracts and establishing the contractual framework under which the 
CC’s staff operates. The PCC has not set up a separate bank account for the Chief Constable, which 
reflects the fact that all income is paid to the PCC. The PCC has not made arrangements for the carry 
forward of balances or for the Chief Constable to hold cash backed reserves.  
 
Therefore, the Chief Constable fulfils his statutory responsibilities for delivering an efficient and effective 
police force within an annual budget, which is determined by the PCC. The Chief Constable ultimately 
has a statutory responsibility for maintaining the Queen’s peace and to do this has direction and control 
over the Force’s police officers, police community support officers (PCSOs) and police staff. It is 
recognised that in exercising day-to-day direction and control the Chief Constable will undertake 
activities, incur expenditure and generate income to allow the police force to operate effectively. It is 
appropriate that a distinction is made between the financial impact of this day-to-day direction and 
control of the Force and the overarching strategic direction set out in the PCC’s Police and Crime Plan.  
 
Therefore it is appropriate that the expenditure and income associated with day-to-day direction and 
control and the PCC’s funding to support the Chief Constable is best shown in the Chief Constable’s 
Accounts, with the main sources of funding (i.e. central government grants and Council Tax) and the 
vast majority of balances being shown in the PCC’s Accounts. 
 
In particular, it should be noted that it has been decided to recognise transactions in the Chief 
Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) in respect of operational 
policing officer and staff costs, and associated operational incomes, and transfer liabilities to the Chief 
Constable’s Balance Sheet for employment and post-employment benefits in accordance with 
International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19).  
 
The rationale behind transferring the liability for employment benefits is that IAS19 states that the 
employment liabilities should follow employment costs. Because employment costs are shown in the 
Chief Constable’s CIES, on the grounds that the Chief Constable is exercising day-to-day direction and 
control over police officers and police staff, it follows that the employment liabilities are therefore shown 
in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet.   
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3 Explanation of financial statements 
 

The 2017/18 Statement of Accounts for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Suffolk and the PCC 
Group are set out on the following pages. The purpose of individual primary statements is explained 
below: 

 
• The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows the accounting cost in 

the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather 
than the amount to be funded from taxation. The PCC raises taxation to cover expenditure in 
accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. Adjustments made 
between the accounting and funding bases are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
and the associated notes. 

 
• The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 

recognised by the Group. The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by the 
reserves held by the Group. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves 
are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Group may use to provide services, subject to the 
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example 
the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The 
second category of reserves is those that the Group is not able to use to provide services. This 
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the 
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 
• The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) shows the movement in the year on the different 

reserves held by the Group, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the 
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Group’s services, more 
details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These differ 
from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax 
setting purposes.  
 

• The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during 
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount 
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the Group are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of 
services provided by the Group. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows 
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Group’s future service 
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash 
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Group. 

 
Please note that occasionally minor differences occur between the primary statements and the notes 
to the accounts, this is due to unavoidable rounding discrepancies.  The notes to the accounts are 
headed “Group” and “PCC” as appropriate.  If only one table is included within a note, this relates to 
both the Group and the PCC. There have been minor presentational changes in some of the notes in 
an effort to simplify the Statements. In particular, the MiRS for 2016/17 has been re-presented to show 
the full movement on reserves, incorporating what was shown in the Usable reserves note in 2016/17. 
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4 The 2017/18 Revenue and Capital Budget Process 
 

A joint (Suffolk and Norfolk) financial planning process took place between September 2016 and 
January 2017 in accordance with an agreed timetable. An enhanced Service and Financial Planning 
process took place using Outcome Based Budgeting (OBB) principles, and a new OBB modelling tool. 
 
OBB is a method for aligning budgets to demand, performance, outcomes and priorities. This approach 
analyses the activity spending of the entire Force, in terms of budgets, establishment, performance, 
demand and outcomes. This information is then lined up against the priorities and demands of the 
Constabulary and PCC. This allows projects to be developed to target areas that can be made more 
efficient, and those areas requiring more investment. 
 
These outcomes were then reviewed by a Joint Chief Officer Panel against the OBB principles and 
decisions made about limiting growth and increasing savings.  
 
These outputs were then presented to the Joint Chief Officer Team, and further refined after these 
sessions. Finally the outcomes of the process were presented to the PCC. The process concluded with 
agreement on Suffolk only budgets, the agreement of joint budgets, costs and savings arising from the 
process to be included in spending plans. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Section 96 (1) (b) of the Police Act 1996, as amended by section 
14 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the PCC has an obligation to obtain the 
views of ratepayer representatives.  Accordingly, the proposals for expenditure were made available to 
business representatives during January 2017 to enable them to comment upon the proposals.   
 
In addition, a council tax precept survey was undertaken with members of the public.   
 
The results were collated towards the end of January 2017 and presented by the PCC to the Police and 
Crime Panel at its meeting on 31 January 2017.   

 
These spending plans were then incorporated into the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) of the PCC 
covering the period 2017/18 to 2019/20 which was approved by the PCC on 20 January 2017.   
 
The MTFP for the PCC is available on www.suffolk-pcc.gov.uk 
 
5. Financial Performance of the PCC Group for 2017/18 
 
Sources of Funding  
 

The majority of police funding comes from the Government in the form of general and specific grants. 
The remainder comes from Council tax and fees and charges. The financing burden on local Council 
taxpayers, as a percentage of funding, has steadily increased as Government grants are reduced. The 
following chart shows the sources of revenue funding in 2017/18: 

 

http://www.suffolk-pcc.gov.uk/
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Sales & Fees
£6.8m
4.6%

Interest
£0.1m
0.1%

Pension Top up Grant
£20.2m
13.7%

Council tax
£43.8m
29.7%

Home Office Grants
£69.9m
47.5%

Specific Grants incl. Capital
£6.5m
4.4%

Sources of Gross Income 2017/18
Total £147.3m

 

Revenue Budget  

In January 2017, the PCC approved a net revenue budget for 2017/18 of £113.518m. The council tax 
for a Band D property for 2017/18 was £176.85 (2016/17 £173.43) following a decision by the PCC to 
increase the Council Tax by nearly 2%. 

Savings plans 

The Chief Constable has run a well-established and effective change programme over recent years. 
The programme was initially developed to address the savings requirements arising from the spending 
reviews of 2010 and 2013 that covered the period up to 2015/16, and is still required to deal with the 
spending challenges from inflation, increasing demand, the changing nature of crime and ongoing 
investment in modernising the Constabulary through improved digital infrastructure and technology.   

Savings plans of £1.714m were identified for 2017/18, and these savings were achieved. As a result of 
service pressures, despite the government grant being maintained at 2017/18 levels, the Constabulary 
is required to achieve savings of £2.349m in 2018/19. The PCC and Chief Constable are jointly 
committed to providing the best possible policing service across Suffolk whilst at the same time 
increasing efficiency and reducing costs. 

There is more information about the impact of the Home Office settlement for 2018/19 and what this 
means for the Constabulary over the medium-term in the Looking Forward section below. 

Revenue Expenditure Compared to Budget.  

For Budgeting purposes the Revenue Budget is compiled and controlled as set out in the following 
table: 
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Final
Budget outturn Variance

£000 £000 £000

Constabulary 114,295 115,133 (838)
Office of the PCC 928 956 (28)
PCC Commissioning 765 912 (147)
OPCC - Grants (2,734) (2,733) (1)
Capital financing 2,853 2,188 665
Net total contributions to / (from) earmarked reserves (2,589) (2,938) 349

                                             
Total Net Expenditure 113,518 113,518  -
Grants income 69,487 69,487  -
Precept income (before collection fund balance adjustment) 44,031 44,031  -

                                             
Transfer from/(to) General reserves  -  -  -

                                             

 

 

The Total Net Expenditure in the above table is different to Net Cost of Police Services reported in the 
CIES (shown on page 17), which is prescribed by the Code of Practice. The difference is primarily 
made up of accounting adjustments required by the Code. The reconciliation between the two 
amounts is shown in the following table: 

2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000

113,096 Total Net Expenditure per Outturn Report 113,518
(2,043) Revenue funding of capital (1,113)

(695) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) (641)
7,586 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 6,544
 - Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets not taken to the Capital Receipts Reserve  -

27,447 IAS 19 pension service costs (accounting basis) 39,954
(16,464) Pension contributions (funding basis) (16,712)

22 Movement on employee benefits accrual (21)
1,601 Transfers from earmarked balances within the General Fund 2,984

96 Interest received 94
(2,808) Interest payable (2,612)

                              
127,838 Net Cost of Police Services 141,996                              

 

Capital Budget  

The Capital programme for 2017/18, including slippage from 2016/17 and in-year approvals, was 
£6.074m. Actual expenditure against this total was £3.117m. The under-spend of £2.957m is primarily 
due to the re-profiling of estates schemes, together with joint projects including ANPR Cameras, CCR 
Telephony and Mobile Devices continuing into 2018/19. Actual expenditure includes an amount of 
£0.494m relating to incidental and de-minimis expenditure, which is not capitalised in the financial 
statements but charged directly to the CIES. 

The capital programme was financed by government grants and contributions (£0.692m), revenue 
contributions (£1.112m) and capital receipts (£0.819m).  
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Long Term Liabilities 

Pension Liabilities 
 
The PCC operates three separate pension schemes for police officers and one scheme for police staff. 
Although benefits from these schemes will not be payable until an officer or staff member retires, the 
PCC has a future commitment to make these payments and under International Accounting Standard 
19 (IAS19), the PCC is required to account for this future commitment based on the full cost at the time 
of retirement.  The future net pension liabilities of the PCC as calculated by an independent actuary are 
set out in the following table: 
 

 

Year-end 

Total Officers Staff 

31 March 2018 £1,345m £1,299m £46m 
31 March 2017 £1,319m £1,271m £48m 

These liabilities result in the Balance Sheet showing net overall liabilities of £1,316m at 31 March 2018, 
however, the financial position of the PCC remains sound as these liabilities will be spread over many 
years. 

PFI Liabilities 
 
At the year end the Suffolk PCC share of the PFI liability associated with Police Investigation Centres 
amounted to £23.5m. The full cost of the annual unitary charge is included within the PCC’s balanced 
budget. The Suffolk PCC share of an annual grant received from the Home Office supporting the annual 
unitary charge amounts to £2.7m per annum. 
 
Reserves 
 
As at 31 March 2018, the PCC has usable reserves of £8.021m which are available to support revenue 
and capital spending. This includes a general fund balance of £7.854m of which £4.354m relates to 
earmarked balances, against which there are significant commitments, and a general balance of £3.5m. 
These reserves are not fully supported by cash balances, primarily due to capital expenditure in some 
prior years being financed from cash. 
 
Treasury Management 
 
The PCC has agreed a Treasury Management Strategy which complies with CIPFA guidance. During 
2017/18, the PCC continued to borrow and/or invest available cash balances in accordance with cash-
flow forecasts, ensuring that prescribed policies with regard to security and liquidity were observed. The 
average level of investments for 2017/18 was £15.2m and the interest received against the budget of 
£0.029m was £0.094m. The overall return of 0.62% exceeded the benchmark of the Local Government 
7 day rate average of 0.16% by 0.43%, and the 3m LIBOR average of 0.40% by 0.19%. 
 
Annual Governance Statement  
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
accompanies the Statement of Accounts. The AGS can be found on the PCC’s website at www.suffolk-
pcc.gov.uk 
 
6. Non-financial performance 

 
Like most police forces in England and Wales, crime reported to and recorded by Suffolk Constabulary 
has risen. In the 12 months to the end of March 2018 there were 53,312 recorded crimes, 18% more 
than the long-term average. These rises reflect considerable efforts made by officers and staff to 
encourage reporting from victims of ‘hidden’ crimes, and those from parts of the community which have 
not normally reported crime frequently. The Constabulary has also invested resources in ensuring its 
recording of crime is as comprehensive as possible. The results of these strategies has been rises in 

http://www.suffolk-pcc.gov.uk/
http://www.suffolk-pcc.gov.uk/
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violence, sexual crime and domestic abuse. 

The Constabulary continues to prioritise services to vulnerable and at risk victims, and perpetrators who 
cause the highest harm. The Force continues robust operational responses to the threat of ‘county lines’ 
organised crime groups, to modern day slavery, and to sexual crimes against adults and children. 
Collaborations with Norfolk Constabulary, the regional special operations unit (ERSOU), the seven 
force collaboration and other Suffolk agencies and voluntary organisations, and investments in modern 
technologies such as automated number plate recognition, mobile computing devices and body worn 
video cameras are critical parts of these responses. 

The Constabulary also continues to prioritise community issues through investment in its safer 
neighbourhood teams and rural crime team. The Suffolk 2025 project continues to develop evidence 
based initiatives to reduce demand and improve efficiency enabling officers to spend more time 
engaging with communities and responding to local needs. As a result, public confidence in the 
Constabulary remains high and anti-social behaviour has fallen substantially. 

The Police and Crime Plan 2016-2020 lists the priorities for tackling crime in Suffolk: 

• Child Sexual Abuse 

• Domestic Abuse 

• Serious Sexual Offences 

• Online Crime 

• Hate Crime 

• Rural Crime 

• Business Crime 

• Emergency Response 

• Public Confidence 

• Road Safety 

The following table shows the ‘year-end’ position for selected Police and Crime Plan key performance 
indicators as at the 31st March 2018. 
 

Area Indicator 2016/17 2017/18 
Domestic Abuse Number of crimes 5,041 6,016 

Solved rate 24% 18% 
Serious Sexual 
Offences 

Number of crimes 1,289 1,673 
Solved rate 13% 6% 

Child Sexual Abuse Number of crimes 861 740 
Solved rate 11% 15% 

Business Crime Number of crimes 5,589 7,461 
Solved rate 36% 28% 

Hate Crime Number of crimes 805 1,139 
Solved rate 8% 9% 

Online Crime Number of crimes 1,001 1,205 
Solved rate 17% 12% 

Call Handling % 999 calls answered in 10 seconds 90% 91% 
Average time to answer 101 calls 162 233 

Emergency Response % of emergencies responded to in 
target time 

89% 90% 

Road Safety Number of KSI collisions 301 242 
Confidence % of public who think police are doing a 

good job 
65% 63% 
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Demands on the Constabulary have changed in nature in recent years. ‘Traditional’ acquisitive crimes 
have reduced substantially, while ‘hidden’ crimes such as domestic abuse and child sexual exploitation 
have risen. Rises in crime and reductions in solved rates reflect this changing demand, as does the 
focus of the Police and Crime Plan. The Force continues to prioritise the most harmful crime types 
alongside initiatives that focus on community priorities such as rural crime, and business crime and 
responding to emergencies. The Force’s performance in call handling and emergency response 
remains strong and the number of people killed and serious injured in road traffic collisions decreased 
by almost 20% reflecting the level of priority attached by the Constabulary. 

7.  Looking Forward  

Since 2010 the financial context for policing has been very challenging. Suffolk’s direct funding sources 
(main government grant, specific grants and council tax) have reduced in cash terms by £4.8m. When 
taking account of actual pay inflation, and average inflation for non-pay, this equates to £17m in real 
terms since 2010. 
 
In addition, the Constabulary has had to absorb other costs such as the impact of the introduction of 
the Single Tier Pension (£1.8m), the Apprenticeship Levy (£0.4m), as well as other increases such as 
those connected to pension contributions and insurance premium tax. 
 
In common with other forces across the country, the Constabulary continues to face significant service 
pressures due to the changing nature of crime. Whilst Suffolk remains a safe county, the Constabulary 
is dealing with continuing increases in reports of domestic abuse, rape and serious sexual offences, 
adult and child abuse and allegations of cyber enabled fraud. These are some of the most complex and 
demanding investigations the service has to undertake and they require a highly skilled workforce. As 
a result Suffolk Constabulary is facing some significant cost pressures which have to be addressed. 
 
Other legislative changes and procedural changes, such as the changes to managing bail and the 
impact from the introduction of Virtual Courts have directly increased costs to the Constabulary. The 
Constabulary continues to deal with the impact of the shortage in resources of other public sector 
partners, in particular mental health and ambulance services, resulting in the Constabulary having to 
absorb additional demand from these areas as the emergency service of last resort. 
 
The grant settlement from government kept the main grant for 2018/19 at the same level as 2017/18 
and also allowed PCCs to increase their Band D precept by a maximum of £12 per annum. The PCC 
for Suffolk consulted the public and a majority (66%) supported the maximum increase and the precept 
for 2018/19 has been increased by this amount. 
 
The Minister for Policing and the Fire Service, the Rt Hon. Nick Hurd outlined in the Police Grant report 
that the “Government intends to maintain the protection of a broadly flat police grant in 2019/20 and 
repeat the same flexibility of the precept, i.e. allowing PCCs to increase their Band D precept by a 
further up to £12 per annum in 2019/20”.  This approach to 2019/20 is dependent on the police delivering 
“clear and substantial progress against the agreed milestones on productivity and efficiency in 2018”.  
 
The PCC and Chief Constable are committed to delivering these further efficiencies. For 2018/19 the 
Constabulary has identified £2.349m of savings to balance the budget and over the life of the Medium-
Term Financial Plan this figure rises to £4.424m by 2021/22. Even with this level of identified savings, 
this leaves an additional savings requirement of £3.198m to be identified by 2021/22. In order to achieve 
this level of savings and ensure the policing model is as efficient as possible the Constabulary continues 
with its approach to change. This has focussed on three strands: the Service and Financial Planning 
process underpinned by Outcome Based Budgeting (OBB) principles; developing a new programme to 
develop the vision for policing in the county called Suffolk 2025; and Regional Collaboration. 

All of these proactive elements that use demand, performance and priority data will shape the new 
change programme and be captured in future Medium-Term Financial Plans to support the continued 
transformation and modernisation of policing. It is clear that the change programme will need to remain 
a continuous process, ensuring that savings can be driven out in a timely fashion to ensure budgets 
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can be balanced over the medium-term and beyond. 

Nationally, to help deliver the Policing Vision for 2025, and meet the Minister’s requirement for “clear 
and substantial progress” on productivity and efficiency, two significant programmes are in place, these 
being the Commercial Collaboration Programme and the National Enabling Programme. 

The former is overseen by the National Commercial Board and has five workstreams: Collaborative 
Procurement; Shared Services; Enablement; Commercial Models; Estates. 

The National Enabling Programme is a programme that will provide a modern technology environment 
that is fundamental to transforming ways of working across policing in the UK. 

As reported last year, there is an ongoing requirement for increased capital spending over the medium-
term due to the continuing pace of modernisation and the need to ensure that the Force is fit-for-purpose 
and appropriately equipped. This includes significant investment in refreshing the growing ICT / digital 
estate; increasing investment in infrastructure e.g. in networks and servers to deal with the growth in 
requirements for investigating and storing digital data; and the continued roll-out and renewal of projects 
such as Body Worn Video and mobile working. There are also spending requirements due to the 
development of the National Enabling Programme, referred to above, that will help deliver inter-
operability across all forces. 

The growth of the investment in these “short life” capital assets will need to deliver efficiencies in staffing 
to avoid putting undue pressure on revenue reserves over the medium-term. Over the last few years, 
reserves have been used appropriately to fund the capital programme in respect of short life assets, 
the cost of change (e.g. redundancies arising from implementing the significant change programme), 
and planned temporary staffing costs to respond to service pressures, and transition programmes. 
Careful consideration has been given to reserve levels over the medium-term, and beyond particularly 
by modelling capital financing over the next 20 years.  

The MTFP therefore includes planned contributions to reserves in each year of the plan in order to 
ensure that sufficient reserves are available for the medium and longer-term. This will require additional 
savings to be found, and is a significant driver for further development of the change programme over 
the coming months and years. 

These uncertainties and challenges will require the PCC and Constabulary to keep financial planning 
assumptions under constant review, to ensure that the financial position remains stable into the long-
term. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chris Bland CPFA 

Chief Finance Officer 
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 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
for the PCC for Suffolk Group  

for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Gross Net Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 Note £000 £000 £000

Division of Service:
128,277 (8,200) 120,077 Chief Constable 144,299 (9,641) 134,658

9,975 (2,855) 7,120 PCC's Office 9,296 (2,870) 6,425
1,515 (873) 642 PCC Commissioning 1,782 (870) 912

                                                                                          
139,766 (11,928) 127,838 Net Cost of Police Services Page 27 155,377 (13,380) 141,996
                                                                                          

Other Operating Expenditure:
 - (19,111) (19,111) Home Office contribution to police pensions 8  - (20,231) (20,231)
258  - 258 Loss / (profit) on disposal of fixed assets  - (165) (165)                                                                                          
258 (19,111) (18,854)  - (20,396) (20,396)                                                                                          

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:
2,808  - 2,808 Interest payable and similar charges 2,612  - 2,612

39,698  - 39,698 Net pensions interest cost 17 34,379  - 34,379
 - (96) (96) Interest and investment income  - (94) (94)

                                                                                          
42,506 (96) 42,410 36,991 (94) 36,897                                                                                          

Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income:
 - (47,509) (47,509) General grants 8  - (46,940) (46,940)
 - (923) (923) Capital grants and contributions 8  - (576) (576)
 - (22,867) (22,867) Non-domestic rate redistribution 8  - (22,547) (22,547)
 - (42,340) (42,340) Precepts 11  - (43,761) (43,761)

                                                                                          
 - (113,639) (113,639)  - (113,824) (113,824)                                                                                          

37,756 Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 6 44,673                              

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:
(2,863) (Surplus) / deficit on the revaluation of assets 13 (1,468)

148,719 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 17 (11,516)                              
145,856 (12,985)                              

183,612 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 31,689                              
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 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
for the PCC for Suffolk  

for the year ended 31 March 2018 

 

Gross Net Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 Note £000 £000 £000

Division of Service:
9,975 (2,855) 7,120 PCC's Office 9,296 (2,870) 6,425
1,515 (873) 642 PCC Commissioning 1,782 (870) 912

                                                                                          
11,489 (3,728) 7,761 Net Cost of Police Services before group funding 11,078 (3,740) 7,338

128,233  - 128,233 Intra-group funding 5 131,758  - 131,758                                                                                          
139,722 (3,728) 135,994 Net Cost of Policing Services Page 28 142,836 (3,740) 139,096                                                                                          

Other Operating Expenditure:
 - (19,111) (19,111) Home Office contribution to police pensions 8  - (20,231) (20,231)
258  - 258 Loss / (profit) on disposal of fixed assets  - (165) (165)                                                                                          
258 (19,111) (18,854)  - (20,396) (20,396)                                                                                          

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:
2,808  - 2,808 Interest payable and similar charges 2,612  - 2,612

26  - 26 Net pensions interest cost 17 22  - 22
 - (96) (96) Interest and investment income  - (94) (94)

                                                                                          
2,834 (96) 2,738 2,634 (94) 2,540                                                                                          

Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income:
 - (47,509) (47,509) General grants 8  - (46,940) (46,940)
 - (923) (923) Capital grants and contributions 8  - (576) (576)
 - (22,867) (22,867) Non-domestic rate redistribution 8  - (22,547) (22,547)
 - (42,340) (42,340) Precepts 11  - (43,761) (43,761)

                                                                                          
 - (113,639) (113,639)  - (113,824) (113,824)                                                                                          

6,240 Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 6 7,416                              

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:
(2,863) (Surplus) / deficit on the revaluation of assets 13 (1,468)

(660) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 17 (72)
                              
(3,523) (1,541)                              

2,717 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 5,876                              
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 Balance Sheet for the PCC for Suffolk Group  
as at 31 March 2018 

 

31 March 31 March
2017 2018
£000 Notes £000

54,147 Property, plant and equipment 13 51,214
3,536 Intangible assets 13 3,246                                  

57,683 Non-Current Assets 54,460

1,148 Long term debtors 19 950                                  
58,831 Total Long term Assets 55,410                                  

89 Inventories 92
12,731 Short term debtors and prepayments 19 12,418

869 Cash and cash equivalents 20 4,455
8,001 Short term investments 18  -

513 Assets held for sale 21 631                                  
22,204 Current Assets 17,596                                  

81,035 TOTAL ASSETS 73,006                                  

10,776 Short-term creditors and accruals 22 10,585
2,000 Short term borrowing 31 455
1,171 Provisions 24 1,902

327 PFI liabilities and leases 16 356                                  
14,274 Current Liabilities 13,298                                  

1,318,986 Other long term liabilities 17 1,344,859
8,508 Long term borrowing 31 7,751

23,463 PFI liabilities 16 23,107
126 Grants receipts in advance 8

                                  
1,351,083 Long Term Liabilities 1,375,718                                  

1,365,357 TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,389,016
                                  

(1,284,321) NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) (1,316,008)                                    

11,120 Usable reserves Page 21 8,021
(1,295,441) Unusable reserves 27 (1,324,029)

                                    
(1,284,321) TOTAL RESERVES (1,316,008)

                                    

 
The financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by Chris Bland 
on 30th May 2018.   
 
 
Chris Bland CPFA (CFO PCC)      
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 Balance Sheet for the PCC for Suffolk  
as at 31 March 2018 

 

31 March 31 March
2017 2018
£000 Notes £000

54,147 Property, plant and equipment 13 51,214
3,536 Intangible assets 13 3,246                                  

57,683 Non-Current Assets 54,460

1,148 Long Term Debtors 19 950                                  
58,831 Total Long term Assets 55,410                                  

89 Inventories 92
12,731 Short term debtors and prepayments 19 12,418

869 Cash and cash equivalents 20 4,455
8,001 Short term investments 18  -

513 Assets held for sale 21 631                                  
22,204 Current Assets 17,596                                  

81,035 TOTAL ASSETS 73,006                                  

10,046 Short-term creditors and accruals 22 9,876
2,000 Short Term Borrowing 31 455
1,171 Provisions 24 1,902

327 PFI liabilities and leases 16 356                                  
13,544 Current Liabilities 12,588                                  

774 Other long term liabilities 17 814
8,508 Long term borrowing 31 7,751

23,463 PFI liabilities 16 23,107
126 Grants receipts in advance 8                                  

32,870 Long Term Liabilities 31,673                                  

46,414 TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,261                                  

34,622 NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 28,746                                  

11,120 Usable reserves Page 23 8,022
23,502 Unusable reserves 27 20,724                                  
34,622 TOTAL RESERVES 28,746

                                  

 
The financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by Chris Bland on 
30th May 2018.  

 

 

Chris Bland  CPFA (CFO PCC)      
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General Capital Capital Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Total

Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
Year Ended 31 March 2018 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2017 10,838  - 282 11,120 (1,295,440) (1,284,320)
                                                                                          

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis) Page 17 (44,673)  -  - (44,673)  - (44,673)

Other comprehensive income and (expenditure) Page 17  -  -  -  - 12,985 12,985                                                                                            
Total comprehensive income and expenditure (44,673)  -  - (44,673) 12,985 (31,689)

Amortisation of intangible assets 13 851  -  - 851 (851)  -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13 4,343  -  - 4,343 (4,343)  -
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 13 1,350  -  - 1,350 (1,350)  -
Capital grants and contributions and income inc in relation
to donated assets credited to the  CIES Page 17 (576)  -  - (576) 576  -
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - (116) (116) 116  -
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets Page 17 (165) 819  - 654 (654)  -
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  -  -  -  -  -  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those  -
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 57,621  -  - 57,621 (57,621)  -
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 270  -  - 270 (270)  -
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance 14 (1,113)  -  - (1,113) 1,113  -
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 14 (641)  -  - (641) 641  -
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund Page 17 (20,231)  -  - (20,231) 20,231  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account (21)  -  - (21) 21  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  - (819)  - (819) 819  -                                                                                          
Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulations 41,689  - (116) 41,573 (41,573)  -                                                                                          
Net increase / (decrease) before transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves (2,984)  - (116) (3,100) (28,589) (31,689)

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves  -  -  -  -  -  -                                                                                                    
Increase / (decrease) in year (2,984)  - (116) (3,100) (28,589) (31,689)                                                                                                    

Balance at 31 March 2018 7,854  - 166 8,022 (1,324,029) (1,316,008)                                                                                                    
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General Capital Capital Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Total

Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
Year Ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016 12,439  - 3 12,442 (1,113,151) (1,100,709)
                                                                                          

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis) Page 17 (37,756)  -  - (37,756)  - (37,756)

Other comprehensive income and (expenditure) Page 17  -  -  -  - (145,856) (145,856)                                                                                            
Total comprehensive income and expenditure (37,756)  -  - (37,756) (145,856) (183,612)

Amortisation of intangible assets 13 833  -  - 833 (833)  -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13 4,190  -  - 4,190 (4,190)  -
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 13 2,564  -  - 2,564 (2,564)  -
Capital grants and contributions and income inc in relation
to donated assets credited to the  CIES Page 17 (923)  - 282 (641) 641  -
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - (3) (3) 3  -
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets Page 17 258 103  - 361 (361)  -
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  - 160  - 160 (160)  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 50,681  -  - 50,681 (50,681)  -
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 380  -  - 380 (380)  -
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance 14 (2,043)  -  - (2,043) 2,043  -
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 14 (695)  -  - (695) 695  -
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund Page 17 (19,111)  -  - (19,111) 19,111  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account 22  -  - 22 (22)  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  - (263)  - (263) 263  -                                                                                          
Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulations 36,155  - 279 36,434 (36,434)  -                                                                                          
Net increase / (decrease) before transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves (1,601)  - 279 (1,322) (182,290) (183,612)

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves  -  -  -  -  -  -                                                                                                    
Increase / (decrease) in year (1,601)  - 279 (1,322) (182,290) (183,612)                                                                                                    

Balance at 31 March 2017 10,838  - 282 11,120 (1,295,440) (1,284,320)                                                                                                    
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General Capital Capital Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Total

Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
Year Ended 31 March 2018 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2017 10,838  - 282 11,120 23,502 34,622
                                                                                          

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis) Page  18 (7,416)  -  - (7,416)  - (7,416)

Other comprehensive income and expenditure Page  18  -  -  -  - 1,541 1,541                                                                                            
Total comprehensive income and expenditure (7,416)  -  - (7,416) 1,541 (5,876)

Amortisation of intangible assets 13 851  -  - 851 (851)  -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13 4,343  -  - 4,343 (4,343)  -
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 13 1,350  -  - 1,350 (1,350)  -
Capital grants and contributions and income in relation to
donated assets credited to the  CIES Page  18 (576)  -  - (576) 576  -
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - (116) (116) 116  -
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets Page  18 (165) 819  - 654 (654)  -
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  -  -  -  -  -  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those  -
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 112  -  - 112 (112)  -
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 270  -  - 270 (270)  -
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance 14 (1,113)  -  - (1,113) 1,113  -
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 14 (641)  -  - (641) 641  -
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund  -  -  -  -  -  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  -  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  - (819)  - (819) 819  -

 -
Adjustments between accounting basis and                                                                                           

funding basis under regulations 4,433  - (116) 4,317 (4,317)  -
                                                                                          

Net increase / (decrease) before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves (2,984)  - (116) (3,100) (2,776) (5,876)

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves  -  -  -  -  -  -
                                                                                                    

Increase / (decrease) in year (2,984)  - (116) (3,100) (2,778) (5,876)                                                                                                    

Balance at 31 March 2018 7,854  - 166 8,022 20,724 28,748                                                                                                    
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General Capital Capital Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Total

Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
Year Ended 31 March 2017 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016 12,439  - 3 12,442 24,897 37,338                                                                                          
Movement in Reserves during 2016/17

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis) Page  18 (6,240)  -  - (6,240)  - (6,240)

Other comprehensive income and expenditure Page  18  -  -  -  - 3,523 3,523                                                                                            
Total comprehensive income and expenditure (6,240)  -  - (6,240) 3,523 (2,717)

Amortisation of intangible assets 13 833  -  - 833 (833)  -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13 4,190  -  - 4,190 (4,190)  -
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 13 2,564  -  - 2,564 (2,564)  -
Capital grants and contributions and income in relation to
donated assets credited to the  CIES Page  18 (923)  - 282 (641) 641  -
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - (3) (3) 3  -
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets Page  18 258 103  - 361 (361)  -
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  - 160  - 160 (160)  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 75  -  - 75 (75)  -
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 380  -  - 380 (380)  -
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance 14 (2,043)  -  - (2,043) 2,043  -
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 14 (695)  -  - (695) 695  -
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund  -  -  -  -  -  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  -  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  - (263)  - (263) 263  -

                                                                                          
Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulations 4,639  - 279 4,918 (4,918)  -                                                                                          
Net increase / (decrease) before transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves (1,601)  - 279 (1,322) (1,395) (2,717)

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves  -  -  -  -  -  -
                                                                                                    

Increase / (decrease) in year (1,601)  - 279 (1,322) (1,395) (2,719)                                                                                                    

Balance at 31 March 2017 10,838  - 282 11,120 23,502 34,620                                                                                                    
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Cash-flow Statement for the PCC for Suffolk Group 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

 
 

2016/17 2017/18
£000 Note £000

(37,756) Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services Page 17 (44,673)

37,592 Adjustment for non cash or cash equivalent movements 30 44,852

Adjustment for items included in net deficit on the provision
 - of services that are investing or financing activities:  -

(923) Capital grants and contributions (576)
                              
(1,087) Net cash flows from operating activities (397)

(4,057) Investing activities 29 6,646

1,330 Financing activities 29 (2,665)
                              
(3,814) Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28 3,584

4,683 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 20 869
                              

869 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 20 4,455
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 Cash-flow Statement for the PCC for Suffolk  
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

 
 

2016/17 2017/18
£000 Note £000

(6,240) Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services Page 18 (7,416)

6,075 Adjustment for non cash or cash equivalent movements 30 7,596

Adjustment for items included in net deficit on the provision
 - of services that are investing or financing activities:  -

(923) Capital grants and contributions (576)
                              
(1,087) Net cash flows from operating activities (396)

(4,057) Investing activities 29 6,646

1,330 Financing activities 29 (2,665)
                              
(3,813) Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28 3,585

4,683 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 20 869
                              

870 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 20 4,454                              
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Expenditure & Funding Analysis for the  
PCC for Suffolk Group 

 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the Financial Statements; however, it is positioned 
here as it provides a link from the figures reported in the Narrative Report to the CIES. 
 

Net Expenditure Adjustments between Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to the Funding and in the 

General Fund Balances Accounting Basis CIES
Group Position £000 £000 £000
Year Ended 31 March 2018

Chief Constable 111,528 23,131 134,658
PCC's Office (209) 6,634 6,425
PCC Commissioning 912  - 912                                             
Net Cost of Police Services 112,231 29,765 141,996                                             

Other income and expenditure (109,247) 11,924 (97,323)                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 2,984 41,689 44,673                                             

Opening general fund balance at 1 April 2017 10,839

Less deficit on general fund in year (2,984)               
Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2018 7,855               

Year Ended 31 March 2017

Chief Constable 109,120 10,957 120,077
PCC's Office (515) 7,635 7,120
PCC Commissioning 642  - 642                                             
Net Cost of Police Services 109,247 18,591 127,838                                             

Other income and expenditure (107,647) 17,564 (90,082)                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 1,600 36,156 37,756                                             

Opening general fund balance at 1 April 2016 12,439

Less deficit on general fund in year (1,600)               
Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 10,839               
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Expenditure & Funding Analysis for the  
PCC for Suffolk  

Net Expenditure Adjustments between Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to the Funding and in the 

General Fund Balances Accounting Basis CIES
PCC's Office £000 £000 £000
Year Ended 31 March 2018

PCC's Office (209) 6,635 6,425
PCC Commissioning 912  - 912
Intra-group funding 131,758 131,758                                             
Net Cost of Police Services 132,461 6,635 139,096                                             

Other income and expenditure (129,479) (2,201) (131,680)                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 2,982 4,434 7,416                                             

Opening general fund balance at 1 April 2017 10,838

Less deficit on general fund in year (2,982)               
Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2018 7,856               

Year Ended 31 March 2017

PCC's Office (516) 7,635 7,120
PCC's Commissioning 642  - 642
Intra-group funding 128,233  - 128,233                                             
Net Cost of Police Services 128,359 7,635 135,994                                             

Other income and expenditure (126,758) (2,996) (129,754)                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 1,601 4,639 6,240                                             

Opening general fund balance at 1 April 2016 12,439

Less deficit on general fund in year (1,601)               
Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 10,838               
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1. Accounting Policies 
 

General principles 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31 March 2018.  The Group is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared 
in accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily comprise the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (CoP), supported by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.   

Cost recognition and intra-group adjustment 

Refer to Note 5 for further details.   

Recognition of working capital 

The Scheme of Governance and Consent sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable, and also includes the Financial Regulations and Contract 
Standing Orders.  As per these governance documents all contracts and bank accounts are in the name 
of the PCC.  No consent has been granted to the Chief Constable to open bank accounts or hold cash 
or associated working capital assets or liabilities.  This means that all cash, assets and liabilities in 
relation to working capital are the responsibility of the PCC, with all the control and risk also residing 
with the PCC.  To this end, all working capital is shown in the accounts of the PCC and the Group.   

Accruals of income and expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not in the financial period in which cash payments 
are paid or received.   

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of 
not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the 
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in value.   

Debtors and creditors 

Revenue and capital transactions are included in the accounts on an accruals basis.  Where goods and 
services are ordered and delivered by the year-end, the actual or estimated value of the order is 
accrued.  With the exception of purchasing system generated accruals a de-minimis level of £1,000 is 
set for year-end accruals of purchase invoices, except where they relate to grant funded items, where 
no de-minimis is used.  Other classes of accrual are reviewed to identify their magnitude.  Where the 
inclusion or omission of an accrual would not have a material impact on the Statement of Accounts, 
either individually or cumulatively, it is omitted.   

Charges to the CIES (Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) for Non-Current 
Assets 

Net cost of policing of the PCC is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-
current assets during the year:  

• Depreciation attributable to the assets.   
• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the 

Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off.   
• Amortisation of intangible assets.   

The PCC is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation, impairment losses or 
amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue, the Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP), towards the reduction in the overall borrowing requirement (represented by 
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the Capital Financing Requirement) equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by 
the PCC in accordance with statutory guidance.   

Depreciation, amortisation, and revaluation and impairment losses are reversed from the General Fund 
and charged to the Capital Adjustment Account via the MIRS (Movement in Reserves Statement).  MRP 
is charged to the General Fund along with any Revenue Funding of Capital and credited to the Capital 
Adjustment Account via the MIRS.   

Guidance issued under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2009, enables authorities to calculate an amount of MRP, which they consider to be 
prudent.  For capital expenditure incurred from 2008/09, the PCC has approved calculating the MRP 
using the Option 3 method, which results in equal instalments of MRP being charged over the related 
assets’ useful life.   

Property, plant and equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment.   

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is capitalised 
on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits 
or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.   

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement and disposal of non-current assets is 
capitalised subject to a de-minimis threshold of £10,000.  Expenditure below this amount on an 
individual asset is treated as revenue, with the following exceptions: 

• Desktop and laptop computers and tablets 
• Monitors 
• Multi-functional devices 
• Communication devices including radios 
• Servers 
• Software licences 
• Firearms including TASERs 
• Vehicles with a life exceeding 12 months 
• Annual Assets (projects incurring expenditure throughout the year which are not classified as 

assets under construction) 
• Where government grant funding has been sought and received for specific expenditure on the 

assumption that both the grant and expenditure are treated as capital 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:  

• The purchase price 
• Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
• The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 

which it is located 

The Group does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred on the acquisition or construction of fixed 
assets.   

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be fair value, unless the acquisition 
does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Group).  
In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying 
amount of the asset given up by the Group.   
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Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the CIES, unless 
the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated 
Assets Account.  Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement.   

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Assets under construction – historic cost until the asset is live (assets under construction are 
not depreciated). 

• Surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and 
best use from a market participant’s perspective. 

• All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 
existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

• Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.   

• Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical 
cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.   

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every 
five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where they arise from the reversal 
of a loss previously charged to a service.   

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for in the following way: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains). 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the net cost of policing of the PCC in the CIES.   

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account.   

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.  Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.   

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for in the following way: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains).   

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.   

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
lines in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 
charged if the loss had not been recognised.   

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation of 
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e., 
assets under construction).   
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Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

• Buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer.   
• Vehicles, plant and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset.   

The Code of Practice requires that where a property, plant and equipment asset has major components 
whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately, where the remaining asset life is significantly different for identifiable components, unless it 
can be proved that the impact on the Group’s Statement of Accounts is not material.  The Group has 
assessed the cumulative impact of component accounting.  As a result the Group applies component 
accounting prospectively to assets that have a valuation in excess of £2m unless there is clear evidence 
that this would lead to a material misstatement in the Group’s Financial Statements.   

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.   

Depreciation or amortisation is charged in both the year of acquisition and disposal of an asset on a pro 
rata basis.  Depreciation or amortisation is charged once an asset is in service and consuming economic 
benefit.   

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  The 
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification, on the basis relevant to the asset class prior to 
reclassification, and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where 
there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous 
losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on 
Assets Held for Sale.   

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 
held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 
had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell.   

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.   

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals 
(if any) are credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted 
off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.   

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and are to be credited to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment, or set aside to reduce the 
PCC’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to the 
Reserve from the General Fund balance in the MIRS.   

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund balance in the MIRS.   

Fair Value Measurement 

The Group measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment properties 
at fair value on each reporting date.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 
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a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The Group measure the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest.   

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Group takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.   

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.   

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Intangible assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the PCC 
as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic 
benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the PCC.   

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the PCC will 
be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the 
asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and 
restricted to that incurred during the development phase.  Research expenditure is not capitalised.   

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the PCC’s services.   

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the PCC can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no intangible 
asset held by the PCC meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost.   

The depreciable amount of a finite intangible asset is amortised over its useful life and charged to the 
net cost of policing of the PCC in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the net cost of policing 
of the PCC in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset 
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.   

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualified as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 
the General Fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 
balance in the MIRS and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.   

Council Tax 

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax on behalf of the major preceptors, which includes 
the PCC.  Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) 
for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax.  Under the legislative 
framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities and major preceptors share proportionately the 
risks and rewards that the amount of council tax collected could be less or more than predicted.   

The council tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the PCC’s 
share of accrued income for the year.  However, regulations determine the amount of council tax that 
must be included in the PCC’s General Fund.  Therefore, the difference between the income included 
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in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be 
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  The Balance Sheet includes the Group’s 
share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax relating to arrears, impairment allowances 
for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals.   

Employee benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is 
received from employees.  An accrual is made for the cost of annual leave entitlements earned by 
employees but not taken before the year end.  The accrual is made at the most recent wage and salary 
rates applicable.   

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Group to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the 
appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when 
the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the authority recognises costs 
for a restructuring.  Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the authority to 
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards.  In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners 
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.   

Post-employment benefits 

Officers have the option of joining the Police Pension Scheme 2015.  Civilian employees have the option 
of joining the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by Suffolk County Council.  
Some officers are still members of the Police Pension Scheme 1987 and the New Police Pension 
Scheme 2006, where transitional protection applies.  All of the schemes provide defined benefits to 
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Constabulary, 
and all of the schemes are accounted for as defined benefit schemes.   

The liabilities attributable to the Group of all four schemes are included in the Balance Sheet on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits (including injury benefits on the Police Schemes) earned 
to date by officers and employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates etc., and projections of earnings for current officers and employees.   

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate specified each year by 
the actuary; this is based on the return on UK Government bonds (gilts) plus a prudent asset return 
assumption, which makes an allowance for an anticipated out-performance of Fund returns relative to 
long term yields on gilts.   

The assets of the LGPS attributable to the Group are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value 
as follows: 

• Quoted securities – current bid price. 
• Unquoted securities – professional estimate. 
• Unitised securities – current bid price. 
• Property – market value. 

All three of the police schemes are unfunded and therefore do not have any assets.  Benefits are funded 
from the contributions made by currently serving officers and a notional employer’s contribution paid 
from the general fund; any shortfall is topped up by a grant from the Home Office.   

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into six components: 
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• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year, 
it is allocated to the CIES to the services for which the employee or officer worked.  The current 
service cost is based on the latest available actuarial valuation.   

• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 
relates to years of service earned in earlier years.  Past service costs are debited to the net 
cost of policing in the CIES as part of the service for which the employee or officer worked.   

• Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they 
move one year closer to being paid.  It is charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the CIES.  The interest cost is based on the discount rate and the present 
value of the scheme liabilities at the beginning of the period.   

• The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure.   

• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions.  They are debited to the pension reserve.   

• Contributions paid to the four pension funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension fund in settlement of liabilities.  These are not accounted for as an expense.   

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 
with the amounts payable by the Group to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  This means that in the MiRS there 
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners 
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  The negative balance that arises on the 
Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact on the General Fund of being required to 
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees.   

Discretionary Benefits 

The Group has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of 
early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff 
(including injury awards for police officers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award 
and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.   

The Group makes payments to police officers in relation to injury awards, and the expected injury 
awards for active members are valued on an actuarial basis.   

Events after the reporting period 

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue.  Two types of events can be identified.   

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.  The 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.   

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period.  The Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events.  However, where a category of events would 
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect.   

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts.   

Financial instruments 

Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the PCC becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at 
their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the CIES for interest payable are based on the carrying amount 
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  The effective interest rate is 
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the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the 
amount at which it was originally recognised.   

For the borrowings that the PCC has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is 
the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the CIES is the 
amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.   

Financial Assets 

Financial assets can be classified into two types: 

(i) Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not 
quoted in an active market 

(ii) Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have a 
fixed or determinable payment 

The PCC does not hold any available-for-sale financial assets.   

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the PCC becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable 
are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument.  For the PCC this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.   

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments 
due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the CIES.   

Government grants and contributions 

All government grants are received in the name of the PCC.  However, where grants and contributions 
are specific to expenditure incurred by the Chief Constable, they are recorded as income within the 
Chief Constable’s accounts.  Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants 
and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is 
reasonable assurance that: 

• The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
• The grants or contributions will be received 

Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the CIES until conditions attaching to the 
grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future 
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution 
are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor.   

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 
in the Balance Sheet within creditors as government grants received in advance.  When conditions are 
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants / 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all 
capital grants) in the CIES.   

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS).  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account.  Where it has been applied, it is 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied.   
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Investment policy 

The PCC works closely with its external treasury advisors Link Asset Services to determine the criteria 
for high quality institutions.  The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties 
for inclusion on the PCC’s ‘Approved Authorised Counterparty List’ is provided below: 

• UK Banks which have the following minimum ratings from at least one of the three credit rating 
agencies: 
 

UK Banks Fitch Standard & Poors Moody’s 
Short Term Ratings F1 A-1 P-1 
Long Term Ratings A- A- A3 

 
• Non-UK Banks domiciled in a country which has a minimum sovereign rating of AA+ and have 

the following minimum ratings from at least one of the three credit rating agencies: 
 

Non-UK Banks Fitch Standard & Poors Moody’s 
Short Term Ratings F1+ A-1+ P-1 
Long Term Ratings AA- AA- Aa3 

 
• Part Nationalised UK Banks; 
• The PCC’s Corporate Banker (Lloyds Bank) – if the credit ratings of the PCC’s Corporate 

Banker fall below the minimum criteria for UK Banks above, then cash balances held with that 
bank will be for account operation purposes only and balances will be minimised in terms of 
monetary size and time; 

• Building Societies (which meet the minimum ratings criteria for UK Banks); 
• Money Market Funds (which are rated AAA by at least one of the three major rating agencies); 
• UK Government; 
• Local Authorities, Parish Councils etc. 

All cash invested by the PCC in 2017/18 will be either Sterling deposits (including certificates of deposit) 
or Sterling Treasury Bills invested with banks and other institutions in accordance with the Approved 
Authorised Counterparty List.   

Joint operations and joint assets 

Joint operations are activities undertaken by the PCC or the Chief Constable in conjunction with other 
bodies, which involve the use of the assets and resources of the Group or the other body, rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  The Group recognises on the PCC Balance Sheet the assets 
that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the relevant Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement with its share of the expenditure incurred and income earned from the 
activity of the operation.   

Joint assets are items of property, plant and equipment that are jointly controlled by the Group and 
other bodies, with the assets being used to obtain benefits for these bodies.  The joint operation does 
not involve the establishment of a separate entity.  The Group accounts for only its share of the joint 
assets, and the liabilities and expenses that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect 
of its interest in the arrangement.   

Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  
All other leases are classified as operating leases.   

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.   

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return 
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of specific assets.   
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The PCC as Lessee 

Finance Leases 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 
the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation 
to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the PCC are added to the carrying amount of the asset.  
Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  Contingent rents are 
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.   

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
CIES).  

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 
PCC at the end of the lease period).   

The PCC is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses 
arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards 
the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation and revaluation 
and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the MIRS for the difference 
between the two.   

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services benefiting 
from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.   

The PCC as Lessor 

Where the PCC grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant and equipment, the asset 
is retained in the Balance Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the net cost of policing line in the CIES.  
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.   

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and similar contracts 

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making 
available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor.  
As the Group is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI scheme, and for the 
Police Investigation Centres (PICs) ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass to the 
Group at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Group carries the assets used under the 
contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.   

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the property, plant 
and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator 
to pay for the capital investment.  The liability was written down by the initial contribution.   

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as 
property, plant and equipment owned by the Group.   

The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements: 

• Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in the CIES.   
• Finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.   
• Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract, 

debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.   
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• Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI 
operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated using the same principles as for a finance 
lease).   

• Lifecycle replacement costs – these are included as part of the unitary payment such that the 
supplier absorbs any peaks and troughs throughout the life of the contract.   

Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  For instance, the Group may be 
involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation.   

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES in the year that the 
Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet 
date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties.   

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.  
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service line.   

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another 
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Group settles the obligation.   

The insurance claims provision is maintained to meet the liabilities for claims received but for which the 
timing and/or the amount of the liability is uncertain.  The Group self-insures part of the third party, 
motor and employer’s liability risks.  External insurers provide cover for large individual claims and to 
cap the total claims which have to be met from the provision in any insurance year.  Charges are made 
to revenue to cover the external premiums and the estimated liabilities which will not be met by external 
insurers.  Liability claims may be received several years after the event and can take many years to 
settle.   

Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group.  Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.   

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.   

Reserves 

The Group sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.  
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the CIES.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.   

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the PCC – 
these reserves are explained in the following paragraphs: 

Revaluation Reserve 

This Reserve records the accumulated gains on fixed assets arising from increases in value, as a result 
of inflation or other factors (to the extent that these gains have not been consumed by subsequent 
downward movements in value).  The reserve is also debited with amounts equal to the part of 
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depreciation charges on assets that has been incurred, only because the asset has been revalued.  The 
balance on this Reserve for Assets disposed is written out to the Capital Adjustment Account.  The 
overall balance on this reserve thus represents the amount by which the current value of fixed assets 
carried in the Balance Sheet is greater because they are carried at revalued amounts rather than 
depreciated historic cost.   

Capital Adjustment Account 

This Account accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical costs of fixed assets as 
they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on disposal.  It accumulates (on the 
credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance capital expenditure.  The balance on this 
Account represents timing differences between the amount of the historical cost of the fixed assets that 
have been consumed and the amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory 
requirements.   

Pension Reserve 

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions.  The PCC accounts for post-employment in the CIES as the benefits are earned by 
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, statutory 
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the PCC and Chief Constable make employer’s 
contributions to pension funds or eventually pay any pensions for which they are directly responsible.  
The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall between the benefits 
earned by past and current employees and the resources the PCC and Chief Constable have set aside 
to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time 
the benefits come to be paid.   

Value Added Tax 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income.  Where the VAT is irrecoverable it is 
included in the relevant service line of the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
Irrecoverable VAT is VAT charged which under legislation is not reclaimable (e.g., purchase of 
command platform vehicles).   

2. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been 
Adopted 

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with The Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for 2017/18 (the Code), the Code is based on International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).   

The amendments required to be adopted under the 2018/19 Code are: 

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers including amendments to IFRS 15 

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
• Amendments to IAS12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 

Losses 
• Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative 

Application of the IFRSs referred to above, as adopted by the Code, is required by 1 April 2018, and 
these IFRSs will be initially adopted as at 1 April 2018.  The Code requires changes in accounting policy 
to be applied retrospectively unless alternative transitional arrangements are specified in the Code.   

The vast majority of the PCC’s income streams are taxation or grant based which do not fall within the 
scope of IFRS 15 as they are not contractually based revenue from customers. The only income 
expected to fall within the standard are charges for a statutory service, where there could be a 
performance obligation. The budget for Special Police Services in 2018-19 is currently set at £148k. 
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It is not therefore expected that the adoption of IFRS 15 or any other standards will have a material 
effect on the 2018-19 financial statements. There is no requirement to restate preceding year financial 
information for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. 

 

3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the PCC has had to make certain judgements 
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The critical judgements 
made in the statement of accounts are:  

• The budget is set by the PCC and provides the Chief Constable with the authority to incur 
expenditure.  There are still uncertainties about the future funding beyond 2018/19 in regard of 
what the PCC will receive from the government and limitations around the precept.  The PCC 
and the Chief Constable are working together to mitigate the impact of the funding gap 
emerging over the period of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, the impact of which will be 
realised in the budget set by the PCC.   
 

• The allocation of transactions and balances between the PCC and the Chief Constable has 
been set out in the Narrative Report to these accounts.   
 

• The PCC has taken over the obligations arising from a PFI contract entered into by the former 
Police Authority.  The 30 year PFI contract was for the provision of newly built Police 
Investigation Centres, title to the assets will be retained by the PCCs of both Norfolk and Suffolk 
on completion of the contract.  Associated assets have been capitalised and treated “on 
Balance Sheet” as required by IFRS.   
 

• The PCC for Suffolk has a significant number of assets including those under Private Finance 
Initiatives (PFI) arrangements.  The PCC has the responsibility, control and risk in terms of the 
provision of those assets.  Consequently, a critical judgement has been made to show any 
connected grant funding (e.g. for PFI), and the capital and financing costs of the provision of 
those assets in the PCC accounts.  As the Chief Constable utilises the assets on a day-to-day 
basis, the officers and staff of the Chief Constable have responsibility for the use of the 
consumables, heating and lighting and so forth.  Consequently, these costs are shown in the 
Chief Constable accounts including the service charges element of the PFI.   
 

• Costs of pension arrangements require estimates assessed by independent qualified actuaries 
regarding future cash flows that will arise under the scheme liabilities.  The assumptions 
underlying the valuation used for IAS19 reporting are the responsibility of the Group as advised 
by the actuaries.  The financial assumptions are largely prescribed at any point and reflect 
market expectations at the reporting date.  Assumptions are also made around the life 
expectancy of the UK population.   
 

• In respect of the LGPS police staff pension costs, separate actuarial valuations have been 
carried out to provide the accounting entries for the PCC and the Chief Constable in 2017/18 
and are reflected in the financial statements.   
 

• Establishing the valuation of operational and residential properties.  Depreciation is a 
calculation based on asset value and expected useful life of the assets.  If the useful life of an 
asset is reduced then the depreciation charge to the CIES will increase.  The PCC monitors the 
useful life of assets to identify where any changes to the depreciation charge are required 
during the year.    
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4. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

 

Pensions Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to 
the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged 
to provide the PCC with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  The effects on the net 
pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured.  For instance, a 0.5% 
decrease in the discount rate assumption would result in an increase in the pension liability of £148.8m.   

Exit Packages 

Provisions for exit packages are based on information available at the time of the production of the 
accounts, there may be occasions where employees are subsequently redeployed resulting in the 
provision being overstated.   

Property, Plant and Equipment 

The value of land and property together with the asset lives are obtained from the PCC’s appointed 
external valuers (Carter Jonas).  The PCC relies upon the experience and knowledge of the valuer 
using the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual to provide a 
fair value under IAS16.  The carrying value of land and buildings (excluding assets under construction, 
surplus assets and assets held for sale) at the Balance Sheet date was as follows: 

Land £9.1m 

Property £31.2m 

5. Intra-group Funding Arrangement Between the PCC and Chief Constable 
 

The background and principles that underpin the accounting arrangements and create the need for an 
intra-group adjustment have been set out in the Narrative Report.   

The PCC received all funding on behalf of the Group; at no time, under the current arrangements, does 
the Chief Constable hold any cash or reserves.  However, it is felt that to accurately represent the 
substance of the financial impact of the day-to-day control exercised by the Chief Constable over 
policing it is necessary to capture the costs associated with this activity in the Chief Constable’s CIES.  
A consequence of this is that the employment liabilities associated with police officers and police staff 
are also contained in the Chief Constable’s CIES and the accumulative balances are held on the Chief 
Constable’s Balance Sheet.  All other assets and liabilities are held on the PCC’s Balance Sheet.   

Whilst no actual cash changes hands the PCC has undertaken to fund the resources consumed by the 
Chief Constable.  The PCC effectively makes all payments from the Police Fund.  To reflect this position 
in the Accounts, funding from the PCC offsets cost of service expenditure contained in the Chief 
Constable’s CIES.  This intra-group adjustment is mirrored in the PCC’s CIES.  The financial impact 
associated with the costs of the employment liabilities are carried on the balance sheet in accordance 
with the Code and added to the carrying value of the Pensions Liability and Accumulated Absences 
Liability.   
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6. Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 

Adjustments between the CIES and the General Fund – Group 

Adjustment for Net Change for the Other Total
Capital Purposes Pensions Adjustments Differences Adjustments

Group Position £000 £000 £000 £000
Year Ended 31 March 2018

Chief Constable  - 23,151 (21) 23,131
PCC's Office 6,544 90  - 6,634
PCC Commissioning  -  -  -  -

                                                            
Net Cost of Police Services 6,544 23,242 (21) 29,765                                                            

Other income and expenditure (2,494) 14,148 270 11,924                                                            

Difference between General Fund 
Deficit/(Surplus) & CIES Deficit/(Surplus) 4,050 37,390 249 41,689                                                            

Year Ended 31 March 2017

Chief Constable  - 10,934 22 10,957
PCC's Office 7,586 49  - 7,635
PCC Commissioning  -  -  -  -

                                                            
Net Cost of Police Services 7,586 10,983 22 18,591                                                            

Other income and expenditure (3,403) 20,587 380 17,563                                                            

Difference between General Fund 
Deficit/(Surplus) & CIES Deficit/(Surplus) 4,183 31,570 402 36,155                                                            
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Adjustments between the CIES and the General Fund – PCC 

Adjustment for Net Change for the Other Total
Capital Purposes Pensions Adjustments Differences Adjustments

PCC's Office £000 £000 £000 £000
Year Ended 31 March 2018

PCC's Office 6,544 90  - 6,635
PCC Commissioning  -  -  -  -

                                                            
Net Cost of Police Services 6,544 90  - 6,635                                                            

Other income and expenditure (2,494) 22 270 (2,201)                                                            

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 4,050 112 270 4,434                                                            

Year Ended 31 March 2017

PCC's Office 7,586 49  - 7,635
PCC Commissioning  -  -  -  -

                                                            
Net Cost of Police Services 7,586 49  - 7,635                                                            

Other income and expenditure (3,403) 26 380 (2,997)                                                            

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 4,183 75 380 4,637                                                            
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Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature – Group 

Total Total Total
Chief PCC's PCC's Total

Constable Office Commissioning Group

£000 £000 £000 £000
Reported in 2017/18

Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses 121,316 760  - 122,076
Other service expenditure 22,983 1,498 1,782 26,263
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment  - 7,038  - 7,038
Net pensions interest cost 34,357 22  - 34,379
Interest payments  - 2,612  - 2,612
Loss on the disposal of assets  - (165)  - (165)

                                                            

Total Expenditure 178,656 11,765 1,782 192,203                                                            

Income
Fees, charges and other service income (6,685) (138)  - (6,823)
Interest and investment income  - (94)  - (94)
Income from council tax  - (43,761)  - (43,761)
Government grants and contributions (2,956) (93,027) (870) (96,852)

                                                            
Total Income (9,641) (137,020) (870) (147,530)                                                            

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 169,015 (125,254) 912 44,673                                                            

Reported in 2016/17

Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses 107,571 721  - 108,292
Other service expenditure 20,706 1,327 1,515 23,547
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment  - 7,927  - 7,927
Net pensions interest cost 39,672 26  - 39,698
Interest payments  - 2,808  - 2,808
Gain on the disposal of assets  - 258  - 258

                                                            

Total Expenditure 167,949 13,067 1,515 182,530                                                            

Income
Fees, charges and other service income (7,038) (123)  - (7,161)
Interest and investment income  - (96)  - (96)
Income from council tax  - (42,340)  - (42,340)
Government grants and contributions (1,162) (93,143) (873) (95,177)                                                            
Total Income (8,200) (135,701) (873) (144,774)                                                            

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 159,749 (122,635) 642 37,756                                                            
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Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature – PCC 

Total Total
PCC's PCC's Total
Office Commissioning PCC

£000 £000 £000
Reported in 2017/18

Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses 760  - 760
Other service expenditure 1,498 1,782 3,280
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 7,038  - 7,038
Net pensions interest cost 22  - 22
Interest payments 2,612  - 2,612
Loss on the disposal of assets (165)  - (165)

                                             
Total Expenditure 11,765 1,782 13,547                                             

Income
Fees, charges and other service income (138)  - (138)
Interest and investment income (94)  - (94)
Income from council tax (43,761)  - (43,761)
Government grants and contributions (93,027) (870) (93,896)

                                             
Total Income (137,020) (870) (137,889)                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services                                              
before Intra Group funding (125,254) 912 (124,342)                                             

Intra-group funding 131,758  - 131,758

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 6,504 912 7,416                                             

Reported in 2016/17

Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses 721  - 721
Other service expenditure 1,327 1,515 2,842
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 7,927  - 7,927
Net pensions interest cost 26  - 26
Interest payments 2,808  - 2,808
Gain on the disposal of assets 258  - 258

                                             
Total Expenditure 13,067 1,515 14,581                                             

Income
Fees, charges and other service income (123)  - (123)
Interest and investment income (96)  - (96)
Income from council tax (42,340)  - (42,340)
Government grants and contributions (93,143) (873) (94,016)

                                             
Total Income (135,701) (873) (136,574)

                                             
Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services                                              
before Intra Group funding (122,635) 642 (121,993)                                             

Intra-group funding 128,233  - 128,233

Deficit/(Surplus) on the Provision of Services 5,598 642 6,240                                             
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7. Minimum Revenue Provision 
 

The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is a mechanism to set aside revenue funds for the redemption 
of debt.  The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2015 are issued under 
Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003 and now allow authorities a variety of options in 
calculating their MRP.  The options chosen were that MRP calculated using Option 2 be used for capital 
expenditure up to and including 31 March 2008 and Option 3 for all capital expenditure thereafter using 
the equal instalment method.  Option 3 results in MRP charged in equal annual instalments over the 
assets remaining useful life.  Accounting for PFIs and Finance Leases require that on balance sheet 
assets are also funded through MRP, the amount charged is equivalent to the capital element of the 
liability repaid during the year.  The total amount charged to MRP in 2017/18 was £641k (2017/18 - 
£695k).   

8. Government Grants 
 

The Group and PCC credited the following Government grants and contributions to the CIES during the 
year: 

Amount Amount Amount Amount
receivable receivable receivable receivable

for 17/18 for 16/17 for 17/18 for 16/17
£000 £000 £000 £000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

General police grant 40,155 40,724 40,155 40,724
Council tax support grant 4,891 4,891 4,891 4,891
Council tax freeze grant 1,895 1,895 1,895 1,895
Capital grants and contributions 576 923 576 923
Former DCLG grant 22,547 22,867 22,547 22,867
Precepts 43,761 42,340 43,761 42,340                                                            

113,824 113,639 113,824 113,639                                                            

Credited to Other Operating Expenditure
Home Office contribution to police pensions 20,231 19,111 20,231 19,111                                                            

20,231 19,111 20,231 19,111                                                            
Credited to Services
Police incentivisation 84 256  -  -
Counter terrorism 628 206  -  -
PFI grant 2,733 2,733 2,733 2,733
Other specific grants 3,113 1,572 870 873                                                            

6,558 4,767 3,602 3,606                                                            

Group PCC

 

Capital Grants and contributions include the Mobile Data grant from the Home Office released in year, 
there is also an £11k grant which relates to non-government contributions. 
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31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
Mobile data grant  - 126                              

 - 126                              

 

9. Employees’ Remuneration 
 

The numbers of employees and senior police officers (Chief Superintendent and above) whose 
remuneration exceeded £50k in 2017/18 were as follows: 

 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
Restated

Remuneration
£50,000 - £54,999 9 5    -    -
£55,000 - £59,999 2 5    -    -
£60,000 - £64,999 1    -    -    -
£65,000 - £69,999 1 1    -    -
£70,000 - £74,999 1 3 1 1
£80,000 - £84,999 4 2 1 1
£85,000 - £89,999    - 1    -    -
£90,000 - £94,999 3 2    -    -
£95,000 - £99,999 1    -    -    -
£100,000 - £104,999    - 1    -    -
£105,000 - £109,999 1 1 1 1
£110,000 - £114,999    - 1    -    -
£115,000 - £119,999 1    -    -    -
£125,000 - £129,999 1 1    -    -
£145,000 - £149,999    - 1    -    -
£150,000 - £154,999 1    -    -    -

OPCCGROUP

 

“Remuneration” is defined, by regulation, as “all amounts paid to or receivable by an employee and 
includes sums due by way of expenses allowance (so far as those sums are chargeable to United 
Kingdom income tax) and the estimated money value of any other benefits received by an employee 
otherwise than in cash.” 

Within the £90,000 - £94,999 band for the Group is an FTE relating to the CFO.  The CFO acts as CFO 
for the Chief Constable and the PCC.  The OPCC share of the FTE based on apportionment of salary 
is outside of the above bandings.   

The above bandings include redundancy payments made to 2 employees in 2017/18. 

In addition to the above the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require a detailed disclosure of 
employees’ remuneration for relevant police officers, those holding statutory office and other persons 
with a responsibility for management of the PCC. The officers listed in the following table are also 
included in the above banding disclosure note.  
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Salaries 
Fees and 

Allowances

Employers 
Pension 

Contributions
Taxable 

Expenses Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

2017/18
Position held
Chief Constable - Mr Wilson 144 34 5 183
Temporary Deputy Chief Constable 120 - 7 127

112 26 5 143
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (to 4.6.17) 46 9 2 57

50 11 - 61
70 16 - 86

107 25 - 132
80 19 - 99

Chief Finance Officer  (PCC) - 0.5 FTE 40 10 - 50

2016/17
Position held
Chief Constable - Mr Wilson 143 33 4 180
Temporary Deputy Chief Constable 119 9 6 134

105 24 30 159
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable 

96 22 3 121
50 10 - 60
70 16 - 86

107 25 - 132
80 19 - 99

Chief Finance Officer  (PCC) - 0.5 FTE 40 10 - 50
Deputy Chief Executive (PCC)

Assistant Chief Constable 

Chief Finance Officer  (CC)  - 0.5 FTE
Police and Crime Commissioner 
Chief Executive (PCC)
Deputy Chief Executive (PCC)

Assistant Chief Constable 

(appointed 07.09.16)
Chief Finance Officer  (CC)  - 0.5 FTE
Police and Crime Commissioner 
Chief Executive (PCC)

 

During 2017/18, a chief officer from Suffolk Constabulary acted as Temporary Assistant Chief Constable 
in a joint capacity until 4 June 2017. From 5 June 2017 this position was filled by a Norfolk chief officer. 
During the year Suffolk contributed 43.1% towards the cost of this post. 

The Regulations also require disclosure of compensation for loss of employment and other payments 
to relevant police officers.  No amounts were paid to the above officers in respect of these categories.   

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 

Exit Package Cost 
Band including 
Special Payments

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

£0 - £20,000 13                4                 1                 -                 14                    4                  121             43             
£20,001 - £40,000 5                  1                 -                  -                 5                      1                  129             21             
£60,001 - £80,000 1                  -                 -                  -                 1                      -                  68               -                
£80,001 - £100,000 1                  -                 -                  -                 1                      -                  84               -                

                                                                                                                        
20                5                 1                 -                 21                    5                  402             64                                                                                                                                     

Total Value of Exit 
Packages

Number of Compulsory 
Redundancies

Number of Other 
Agreed Departures

Total Number of Exit 
Packages
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10. Related Party Transactions 
The PCC is required to disclose material transactions with bodies or individuals that have the potential 
to control or influence the PCC or to be controlled or influenced by the PCC.   

During 2017/18 there were no material related party transactions involving officers of the PCC or senior 
officers of the Constabulary, other than those included under employee’s remuneration set out in Note 
9 of these financial statements.  The PCC and other senior officers have been written to requesting 
details of any related party transactions and there are no disclosures.   

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the PCC, it is responsible for 
providing the statutory framework within which the PCC operates, provides the majority of its funding 
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the PCC has with other parties.  Income from 
central government is set out in Note 8 of these financial statements.   

Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies have implemented significant collaborative arrangements, these are 
fully disclosed in Note 32.   

No other material transactions with related parties have been entered into except where disclosed 
elsewhere in the accounts.   

11. Council Tax 
The Suffolk district and borough councils are required to collect the amount of council tax determined 
by the PCC for policing the county.  In 2017/18 the precept, including the estimated 2016/17 collection 
fund surplus/(deficit), was paid to the PCC during the year and amounted to £44.0m distributed as 
shown below.  The Code of Practice now requires that Council Tax income included in the CIES for the 
year should be prepared on an accruals basis.  The cash received from the billing authorities is therefore 
adjusted for the PCC’s share of the outturn opening and closing balances on the Collection Fund.  These 
adjustments are however then taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the MiRS to ensure that only the statutory amount is credited to the General Fund.  
The figures credited to the CIES are broken down as follows: 

Received
from Billing Total

2016/17 Authority 31.3.17 31.3.18 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

5,559 Babergh District Council 5,776 16 (9) 5,752
3,016 Forest Heath District Council 3,168 31 28 3,165
6,579 Ipswich Borough Council 6,893 239 101 6,754
6,147 Mid Suffolk District Council 6,398 69 49 6,378
6,296 St Edmundsbury Borough Council 6,591 158 52 6,486
8,498 Suffolk Coastal District Council 8,816 231 229 8,814
6,244 Waveney District Council 6,389 134 157 6,412

                                                                           
42,340 44,031 878 608 43,761

                                                                           

Outturn surplus/(deficit) 
on Collection Fund at

 

 

The Code of Practice also requires the PCC to account for its share of net council tax arrears and 
prepayments within the Balance Sheet.  This is offset within the Balance Sheet by an associated 
balance that reflects the difference between the net attributable share of cash received by the billing 
authorities from council tax debtors/creditors and the amounts paid to the PCC.  The amounts owed 
to/from billing authorities in respect of council tax at the year-end were as follows: 
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Balance at Collection Balance at
31.3.17 Fund Net Arrears Prepayments 31.3.18

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

61 Babergh District Council 9 79 (26) 61
(36) Forest Heath District Council (28) 111 (108) (26)
(34) Ipswich Borough Council (101) 276 (53) 122

19 Mid Suffolk District Council (49) 92 (28) 15
(178) St Edmundsbury Borough Council (52) 136 (145) (62)
(332) Suffolk Coastal District Council (229) 159 (230) (301)

(93) Waveney District Council (157) 190 (201) (167)
                                                                           

(593) (608) 1,042 (792) (357)
                                                                           

 

 

12. External Audit Fees 
 

The Group fees payable in respect of external audit services were as follows: 

 

2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000

The Group has incurred the following costs
in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts:

32 The PCC for Suffolk 35
15 The Chief Constable of Suffolk 17                              
48 52                              

 

The PCC fees payable in respect of external audit services are identified separately in the above table.   

The 2017/18 audit fees include an amount of £3.4k, attributable to the PCC, in respect of 2016/17 which 
has not been provided for but which had been an approved increase to the original scale fees.   

The 2016/17 audit fees include an amount of £1,1k, split between the PCC and CC in respect of 2015/16 
which has not been provided for but had been an approved increase to the original scales fees. 

No audit fees have been payable for non-audit work.   
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13. Non-Current Assets 

Movements in 2017/18 Land and Vehicles Assets Surplus Total
buildings plant and under con- Assets

equipment struction
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Property, Plant & Equipment
Historic cost or revaluation
Balance at 1.4.17 47,926 28,077 1,295  - 77,298
Reclassifications (1,745)  - (577) 1,180 (1,142)
Additions 24 2,299 267  - 2,590
Derecognition - disposals  - (807)  -  - (807)
Revaluation gains/(losses) recognised in the CIES (2,006)  -  -  - (2,006)
Net revaluation gains/(losses) recognised in the 

Revaluation reserve 1,468  -  -  - 1,468
                                                                           

Balance at 31.3.18 45,668 29,569 985 1,180 77,402                                                                           

Depreciation and impairments
Balance at 1.4.17 3,391 19,760  -  - 23,151
Reclassifications (9)  - (49) 9 (49)
Revaluations (655)  -  -  - (655)
Derecognition - disposals  - (601)  -  - (601)
Depreciation for the year 1,839 2,455 49  - 4,343

                                                                           
Balance at 31.3.18 4,566 21,613  - 9 26,188

                                                                           

Net book value at 31.3.17 44,534 8,318 1,295  - 54,147
                                                                           

Net book value at 31.3.18 41,101 7,956 985 1,171 51,214
                                                                           

Software
Licences

£000
Purchased intangible assets
Historic cost or revaluation
Balance at 1.4.17 6,329
Reclassifications 577
Additions 33
Derecognition - disposals  -

               
Balance at 31.3.18 6,939

               
Amortisation
Balance at 1.4.17 2,793
Reclassifications 49
Amortisation for the year 851
Derecognition - disposals  -

               
Balance at 31.3.18 3,693

               
Net book value at 31.3.17 3,536

               

Net book value at 31.3.18 3,246
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Movements in 2016/17 Land and Vehicles Assets Surplus Total
buildings plant and under con- Assets

equipment struction
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Property, Plant & Equipment
Historic cost or revaluation
Balance at 1.4.16 51,060 27,277 480  - 78,816
Reclassifications (514)  - (23)  - (537)
Additions 137 2,478 925  - 3,540
Derecognition - disposals (41) (1,678) (87)  - (1,805)
Revaluation gains/(losses) recognised in the CIES (5,579)  -  -  - (5,579)
Net revaluation gains/(losses) recognised in the 

Revaluation reserve 2,863  -  -  - 2,863
                                                                           

Balance at 31.3.17 47,926 28,077 1,295  - 77,298                                                                           

Depreciation and impairments
Balance at 1.4.16 4,797 18,624 1  - 23,421
Reclassifications (1)  -  -  - (1)
Revaluations (3,015)  -  -  - (3,015)
Derecognition - disposals (41) (1,403) (1)  - (1,444)
Depreciation for the year 1,651 2,539  -  - 4,190

                                                                           
Balance at 31.3.17 3,391 19,760  -  - 23,151

                                                                           

Net book value at 31.3.16 46,264 8,653 479  - 55,395
                                                                           

Net book value at 31.3.17 44,534 8,318 1,295  - 54,147
                                                                           

Software
Licences

£000
Purchased intangible assets
Historic cost or revaluation
Balance at 1.4.16 6,153
Reclassifications 23
Additions 156
Derecognition - disposals (2)

               
Balance at 31.3.17 6,329

               
Amortisation
Balance at 1.4.16 1,962
Reclassifications  -
Amortisation for the year 833
Derecognition - disposals (2)

               
Balance at 31.3.17 2,793

               
Net book value at 31.3.16 4,190

               

Net book value at 31.3.17 3,536
               

 
Assets under construction are assets that are not yet operationally complete, the balance relates to 
expenditure on land and buildings (£531k) and IT assets (£454k).   
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Included in land and buildings is land at Bury St Edmunds on which a Police Investigation Centre (PIC) 
has been built.  Although the PCC has legal title to the land, it only owns 70% of the beneficial interest 
in the land, the remaining 30% is owned by Norfolk PCC, who is co-occupier of the centre.  Therefore 
only 70% of the current value of the land is included in the table above, amounting to £1.10m.  The 
PCC also paid 50% of the cost of land purchased by Norfolk PCC at Great Yarmouth, the current value 
of this land in the balance sheet amounts to £370k net of revaluation loss.   

The depreciation and amortisation policy is set out in Note 1.  Assets have been depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over their economic useful lives.   

14. Financing of Capital Expenditure 
 

Capital financing is accounted for on an accruals basis.  The sources of capital finance in 2017/18 are 
set out below.   

2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000

35,861 Opening capital financing requirement 35,911
Capital investment

156 Intangible fixed assets 33
2,615 Operational assets 2,323

925 Non operational assets 267

Sources of finance
(263) Capital receipts applied (819)
(644) Government grants and other contributions (692)

(2,043) Direct Revenue Contributions (1,113)
(695) Revenue provision including MRP (641)                              

35,911 Closing capital financing requirement 35,270                              
Explanation of movements in year

50 Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrow (641)                              
50 Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement (641)                              

 

15. Non-Current Asset Valuation 
 

Land and buildings 

The freehold and leasehold properties of the PCC’s property portfolio are individually valued as part of a rolling 5 
year programme.  The valuations, which are carried out by the PCC’s professional advisors, Carter Jonas, who are 
property consultants, are in accordance with their appraisal and valuation manual.  Their valuer is a qualified 
member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).   

In order to calculate buildings depreciation the valuers have provided separate valuations for the land and building 
elements of each property valuation.  The valuers also provide an estimate of the remaining economic useful life 
of the assets.  They are also asked to carry out an impairment assessment of the remaining properties on which 
no formal valuation was carried out in the year.   

Plant and machinery which are part of the building or property (for example, central heating systems) have been 
included in valuations.  This is in accordance with appendices to Practice Statements of the RICS appraisal 
valuation manual.  Moveable plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings, which do not form part of the building, have 
been excluded from the valuations of land and buildings.   

Non specialised operational properties were valued on the basis of existing use value (EUV).  Specialised 
operational properties should also be valued on an EUV basis, or where this could not be assessed because there 
was no market for the subject asset, they were valued according to the depreciated replacement cost.   
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Vehicles, Plant and Equipment and Software Licences 

Vehicles, plant and equipment and software licences are valued at depreciated historic cost as a proxy for 
depreciated replacement cost.   

The breakdown of the property, plant and equipment current value by valuation basis at the year-end is as follows: 

 

Other Vehicles Assets Surplus
Land and plant and under con- Assets
buildings equipment -struction Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at historical cost 958 7,956 985  - 9,899

Valued at fair value at:
   1 October 2017 3,679 1,171 4,850
   1 October 2016 20,423 20,423
   1 October 2015 1,830 1,830
   3 October 2014 9,629 9,629
   31 March 2014 731 731
   1 October 2013 3,847 3,847
   31 March 2011 5 5                                                                           
Balance at 31.3.18 41,101 7,956 985 1,171 51,214

                                                                           

 

16. Private Finance Initiative 
 

On 23 February 2010 Norfolk and Suffolk Police Authorities signed a 30 year PFI contract to construct 
and operate six Police Investigation Centres (PICs) within the two counties.  Three of the PICs are 
shared, two between Norfolk and Suffolk and one between Norfolk and Cambridgeshire.  In addition 
Norfolk operates a further two sites and Suffolk a further one.  The land percentage splits on the Norfolk 
and Suffolk shared sites and the associated land values are disclosed in Note 13.   

Norfolk and Suffolk PCCs are committed to making payments under the contract for the financial years 
2010/11 to 2040/41.  The actual payment split between the two counties will depend on site allocation 
and associated service delivery.  The first PIC became operational on 28 February 2011 at Aylsham, 
Norfolk.  The remaining PICs became operational in 2011/12.   

Under the contract the PCC shares in the benefits and obligations arising from the contractual assets 
on a pre-determined percentage based on the number of cells assigned to each force.  A summary of 
the sites, their initial contract capital values and the respective PCC interest in each site is shown in the 
following table: 
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Capital
Contract

Norfolk Suffolk Value 31.3.18 31.3.17
Sites and opening dates Cells Cells £000 £000 £000

Aylsham - 28.2.11 8  - 6,967  -  -
Wymondham - 4.4.11 30  - 11,398  -  -
Kings Lynn - 25.4.11 24  - 10,749  -  -
Ipswich - 6.6.11  - 30                12,012 12,012 12,012
Bury St Edmunds - 4.7.11 8 16                10,621 7,081 7,081
Gt Yarmouth - 7.11.11 15 15                12,680 6,340 6,340

                                                                           
85                  61                64,427        25,433        25,433      

                                                                           

Historic Cost in Suffolk

 

The PCC makes an agreed payment each year, which can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet 
availability and performance standards in any one year but which is otherwise fixed, however 31.5% of 
the charge is increased annually by inflation (RPIX).  Suffolk’s share of the estimated payments 
remaining to be made under the PFI contract at 31 March 2018 (excluding availability/performance 
deductions) are as follows: 

Revenue Capital Contingent
Services Payments Interest Rent Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payable in 2018/19 1,534 356 2,018 (101) 3,807
Payable within two to five years 5,433 1,756 7,740 665 15,594
Payable within six to ten years 8,907 3,189 8,681 (386) 20,391
Payable within eleven to fifteen years 9,631 4,819 7,051 9 21,510
Payable within sixteen to twenty years 9,798 7,279 4,590 1,109 22,776
Payable within twenty one to twenty five years 7,813 6,064 1,058 (1,005) 13,930                                                                           

43,116 23,463 31,138 291 98,008                                                                           
 

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been 
calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital 
expenditure incurred and the interest payable whilst the capital remains to be reimbursed.   

The capital liability on the Suffolk PCC Balance Sheet at the year end is made up as follows: 

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

Balance outstanding at the beginning of the year 23,790 24,092
Capital repayments during the year (327) (301)
Capital expenditure incurred in the year  -  -
Other movements  -  -                              
Balance outstanding at year end 23,463 23,790                              

 

The net book value of the assets capitalised as part of the PFI contract is made up as follows: 
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2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

Net book value at the beginning of the year 18,164 16,353
Depreciation during the year (946) (713)
Revaluations during the year  - 2,523                              
Net book value at the end of the year 17,217 18,164                              

 

17. Retirement Benefits 
 

Participation in pension schemes 

Pension and other benefits are available to all PCC and Constabulary personnel under the requirements 
of statutory regulations.  Four defined benefit pension schemes are operated: 

a) The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for PCC and Constabulary police staff, 
administered by Suffolk County Council – this is a funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that 
the office holders and employees pay contributions into a fund.  Contributions are calculated at 
a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with investment assets.   

 
From April 2014 the LGPS changed to a career average defined benefit scheme, so that benefits 
accrued are worked out using the employee’s pay each scheme year rather than the final salary.  
This applies to all membership which builds up from 1 April 2014, but all pensions in payment or 
built up before April 2014 are protected.  Employee contributions are determined by reference to 
actual pensionable pay and are tiered between 5.5% and 12.5%.   

 
b) The Police Pension Scheme (PPS) for police officers who joined before April 2006.  The 

employee contributions are 14.25%-15.05% of salary and maximum benefits are achieved after 
30 years’ service.  Contribution rates are dependent on salary.   

 
c) The New Police Pension Scheme (NPPS) for police officers who either joined from April 2006 or 

transferred from the PPS.  The employee contributions are 11.00%-12.75% of salary and 
maximum benefits are achieved after 35 years’ service.  Contribution rates are dependent on 
salary.   

 
d) The Police Pension 2015 Scheme for police officers, is a Career Average Revalued Earnings 

(CARE) scheme, for those who either joined from April 2015 or transferred from PPS or NPPS.  
The employee contributions are 12.44%-13.78% of salary and the Normal Pension Age is 60 
although there are protections for eligible officers to retire earlier.  Contribution rates are 
dependent on salary.   

 

All police pension scheme are unfunded defined benefit schemes, meaning that there are no investment 
assets built up to meet pension liabilities.  There is a Home Office requirement to charge the CIES with 
an employer’s contribution of 24.2% of pensionable pay, the CIES also meets the costs of injury awards 
and the capital value of ill-health benefits.  Employees’ and employer’s contribution levels are based on 
percentages of pensionable pay set nationally by the Home Office and are subject to triennial 
revaluation by the Government Actuary’s Department.  The actuarial valuation has set the employer 
contribution rate for all three police pension schemes from 1 April 2015 as 21.3% of pensionable pay.  
The difference between the old employer contribution rate of 24.2% and the new rate will be retained 
by the exchequer by means of a reduction in the pensions top-up grant from the Home Office, therefore 
the actual cost to the Constabulary of the employer’s contribution is still 24.2%.   

The PCC is also required to maintain a Police Pension Fund Account.  Employer and employee 
contributions are credited to the account together with the capital value of ill-health retirements and 
transfer values received.  Pensions and other benefits (except injury awards) and transfer values paid 
are charged to this account.  If the account is in deficit at 31 March in any year, the Home Office pays 
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a top-up grant to cover it.  If there is a surplus on the account, then that has to be paid to the Home 
Office.   

Transactions relating to post-employment benefits 

The cost of retirement benefits are recognised in the reported Cost of Services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the charge 
required against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of benefits is 
reversed out of the General Fund in the MiRS.   

The note below contains details of the Group’s operation of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(administered by Suffolk County Council) and the Police Pension Schemes in providing police staff and 
police officers with retirement benefits.  In addition, the Group has arrangements for the payment of 
discretionary benefits to certain retired employees outside of the provisions of the schemes.  The 
following transactions have been made in the CIES and the General Fund via the MiRS during the year: 
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Group and PCC 

Group

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services
Current service costs 9,721 5,797 30,069 21,500 204 165
Past service costs 27 69 137 81    -    -

Financing and investment income and expenditure
Net interest expense 1,296 1,456 33,083 38,242 22 26

                                                                                          
Total post employment benefit charges to the 11,044 7,322 63,289 59,823 226 191
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Service

Other post employment benefit charged
to the CIES
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included (2,216) (13,114)    - 9 9 (192)
in the net interest expense)

- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes  - (1,630) (13,346) 7,386    - (22)
in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes (4,997) 29,530 (23,540) 230,271 (82) 420
in financial assumptions
- Other 260 (10,923) 32,323 (92,810) 1 (866)

                                                                                          
(6,953) 3,863 (4,563) 144,856 (72) (660)

Total post employment benefit charged
to the CIES 4,091 11,185 58,726 204,679 154 (469)                                                                                          

Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS):
Reversal of net charges made to the CIES
for post employment benefits in
accordance with the Code (4,091) (11,185) (58,726) (204,679) (154) 469                                                                                          

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance
 for pensions in the year:
Employers' contributions payable to scheme 5,839 5,490  -  - 114 116

 Retirement benefits payable to pensioners  -  - 31,104 30,086                                                                                          
Net charge to the  General Fund 5,839 5,490 31,104 30,086 114 116                                                                                          

LGPS
PCC

LGPS Police Schemes
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Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits 

Group and PCC: 

PCC

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of liabilities (222,591) (214,236) (1,298,862) (1,271,241) (3,815) (3,562)
Fair value of plan assets 176,594 166,490    -    - 3,003 2,788                                                                                                      
Total Net Liabilities (45,997) (47,746) (1,298,862) (1,271,241) (812) (774)                                                                                                    

Group
Local Government

Pension Scheme
Local Government Police

Pension Scheme Pension Schemes
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities 

Group and PCC: 

PCC

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening Balance at 1 April 214,236 187,172 1,271,241 1,096,648 3,562 3,697

Current service cost 9,721 5,797 30,069 21,500 204 165

Interest cost 5,663 6,579 33,083 38,242 96 111

Contributions by scheme participants 1,547 1,492 5,606 5,582 47 50

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes  - (1,630) (13,346) 7,386  - (22)
in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes (4,997) 29,530 (23,540) 230,271 (82) 420
in financial assumptions
- Other 260 (10,999) 32,323 (92,810) 1 (851)

Past service costs 27 69 137 81  -  -

Benefits paid (3,866) (3,774) (36,710) (35,659) (12) (8)

                                                                                                       
Closing Balance at 31 March 222,591 214,236 1,298,862 1,271,241 3,815 3,562

                                                                                                    

Group
Local Government

Pension Scheme
Local Government Police

Pension Scheme Pension Schemes

 

 

  



 

    

 
PCC for Suffolk 63 Notes to the Financial Statements 

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets 

Group and PCC: 

PCC

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening fair value of scheme assets at 1 April 166,490 145,121  -  - 2,788 2,338

Interest Income 4,367 5,123  -  - 74 85

Remeasurement gain/(loss):
- the return on plan assets, excluding the 2,216 13,114  - (9) (9) 192
amount included in the net interest expense
Other  - (76)  -  -  - 15

The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employer 5,839 5,490 31,104 30,086 114 116
Contributions from employees into the scheme 1,547 1,492 5,606 5,582 47 50
Benefits paid (3,865) (3,774) (36,710) (35,659) (11) (8)                                                                                          
Closing fair value of Scheme Assets at 31 March 176,594 166,490  -  - 3,003 2,788                                                                                          

Group
Funded Assets

Local Government
Pension SchemePension Schemes

Funded Assets Unfunded Assets
Police

Pension Scheme
Local Government
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Total of Assets and Liabilities of the schemes 

Group and PCC: 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening Balance at 1 April (47,746) (42,051) (1,271,240) (1,096,648) (774) (1,359)

Current service cost (9,721) (5,797) (30,069) (21,500) (204) (165)

Interest cost (1,296) (1,456) (33,083) (38,242) (22) (26)

Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the 2,216 13,114  - (9) (9) 192
net interest expense)

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes  - 1,630 13,346 (7,386)  - 22
in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes 4,997 (29,530) 23,540 (230,271) 82 (420)
in financial assumptions
- Other (260) 10,923 (32,323) 92,810 (1) 866

Past service costs (27) (69) (137) (81)  -  -

Contributions from employers 5,839 5,490 31,104 30,086 114 116
                                                                                          

Closing Balance at 31 March (45,998) (47,746) (1,298,861) (1,271,240) (813) (774)                                                                                          

Local Government
Pension Scheme

Local Government Police
Pension Scheme Pension Schemes

 

 

 



 

   

 
PCC for Suffolk 65 Notes to the Financial Statements 

The total net pensions liabilities of £1,345m represent the long run commitments in respect of retirement 
benefits and results in the balance sheet showing net overall liabilities of £1,316m.  However, the 
financial position of the PCC remains sound as the liabilities will be spread over many years as follows: 

• The net liability on the local government scheme will be covered by contributions over the 
remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.   

• The net costs of police pensions which are the responsibility of the PCC will be covered by 
provision in the revenue budget and any costs above that level will be funded by the Home 
Office, under the change which came into effect from April 2006.   

Actuarial losses on scheme assets represent the difference between the actual and expected return on 
assets, actuarial gains on scheme liabilities arise from more favourable financial assumptions.   

The County Council is required to have a funding strategy for elimination of deficits, under regulations 
effective from 1 April 2005.  The strategy allows deficits to be cleared over periods up to 20 years.   

The Police Pension Schemes have no assets to cover their liabilities, the Group’s share of the assets 
in the County Council Pension Fund are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments 
and consist of the categories in the following table.   
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31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,832 3,431 31 57

Equity Instruments  - industry type:
- Consumer 12,774 14,551 218 244
- Manufacturing 4,529 4,520 77 76
- Energy and utilities 2,670 3,034 46 51
- Financial institutions 5,882 5,671 100 95
- Health and care 2,734 4,743 47 79
- Information technology 5,155 5,944 88 100
- Other 1,843 2,072 31 35                                                                    
Sub total equity 35,586 40,535 606 679

Bonds - by sector
- Corporate 42,745 24,319 728 407
- Government 6,590  -  -  -
- Other 114 7,032 114 118

                                                                    
Sub total Bonds 49,449 31,351 842 525

Property - by type
- UK property 17,094 15,508 291 260                                                                    
Sub total property 17,094 15,508 291 260

Private equity - all: 6,355 5,370 108 90

Other investment funds:
- Equities 40,885 49,851 696 835
- Bonds  -  -  -  -
- Hedge Funds 7,190 5,079 122 85
- Commodities  -  -  -  -
- Infrastructure 4,598 3,797 78 64
- Other 13,350 11,519 227 193                                                                    
Sub total other investment funds 66,023 70,246 1,124 1,176

Derivatives:
- Foreign exchange (7) 49 (0) 1                                                                    
Sub total derivatives (7) 49 0 1                                                                    
Total Assets 176,332 166,489 3,003 2,787                                                            

Group PCC
Fair Value of Scheme AssetsFair Value of Scheme Assets
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate 
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, 
salary levels etc.  Within the Police Schemes, the age profile of the active membership is not rising 
significantly, which means that the current service cost in future years will not rise significantly as a 
result of using the projected unit credit method.   

Both the Police Schemes and the County Council Fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans 
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries.  The actuary has confirmed that for police staff, there is 
no reason to believe that the age profile is rising significantly.  The main assumptions used in their 
calculations are shown below.   

Group and PCC: 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 (LGPS) and 60 (PPS) for current pensioners

Men 21.9 21.9 29.5 30.2
Women 24.4 24.4 31.5 31.7

Longevity at 65 (LGPS) and 60 (PPS) for future pensioners
Men 23.9 23.9 30.8 31.6
Women 26.4 26.4 32.8 33.2

Rate of inflation (CPI - LGPS and RPI - PPS) 2.4% 2.4% 3.4% 3.4%
Rate of increase in salaries 2.7% 2.7% 3.4% 3.4%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.7% 2.6% 2.7% 2.6%

Local Government Police
Pension Scheme Pension Schemes

 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the 
table above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change 
that the assumption analysed changes while all others remain constant.  The assumptions of longevity, 
for example, assume that the life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women.  In practice, 
this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated.  The estimations 
in the sensitivity analyses have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit credit method.  The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing 
the following sensitivity analyses did not change from those used in the previous period.   
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Group and PCC: 

Group

Approximate Approximate Approximate Approximate Approximate Approximate
Increase to Monetary Increase to Monetary Increase to Monetary
Employers Amount Employers Amount Employers Amount

Liability Liability Liability
% £000 % £000 % £000

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 11.5% 26,193 9.0% 122,561 11.0% 428

1 year increase in member life expectancy 3-5% 7,658-12,763 3.0% 38,966 3-5% 101-168

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 2.5% 5,139 1.0% 13,118 3.0% 101

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8.5% 20,628 8.0% 102,320 8.0% 318

Local Government
Pension Scheme

Local Government Police
Pension Scheme Pension Schemes

PCC

 

Impact on the Group’s Cashflow 

The objectives of the LGPS scheme, as set out in the funding strategy statement, are to keep employer’s contributions at as constant a rate as possible.  The 
County Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years.  The minimum employer contributions 
payable over the next year for the PCC for Suffolk Group is 23.2% (23.2% in 2016/17).  The last triennial valuation was dated 31 March 2016.   

Estimated employer’s contributions for 2018/19 amount to £5.572m on the LGPS and £24.998m on the Police schemes.   
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Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation: 

Group and PCC: 

Police Pension Schemes

£000 % £000 % £000 %

Active members 127,512 57.5% 25.7 477,609 38.2% 25.7 3,815 100.0% 21.4
Deferred members 37,694 17.0% 26.5 60,080 4.8% 25.9 0 0.0% 0.0
Pensioner members 56,456 25.5% 11.7 711,429 57.0% 12.2 0 0.0% 0.0                                                                                                                                                                          
Total 221,662 100% 21.0 1,249,118 100% 18 3,815 100% 21.4                                                                                                                                                                          

Contingent injuries 23,880 48.0% 25.7
Injury pension liabilities 25,864 52.0% 13.6                                                            
Total 49,744 100% 19                                                            

Group
LGPS

Funded 
Liability 

split as at 
31 March 

2018

Funded 
Liability 

split as at 
31 March 

2018

Weighted 
Average 

Duration 
at 

Previous 
Formal 

Valuation

PCC

Liability 
split as at 
31 March 

2018

Liability 
split as at 
31 March 

2018

Weighted 
average 

duration 
of the 

defined 
benefit 

obligation

LGPS
Funded 

Liability 
split as at 
31 March 

2018

Funded 
Liability 

split as at 
31 March 

2018

Weighted 
Average 

Duration 
at 

Previous 
Formal 

Valuation

 



 

   

 
PCC for Suffolk 70 Notes to the Financial Statements 

18. Short-Term Investments 
 

Surplus cash is invested for periods of up to one year in accordance with the approved treasury 
management policy, investments for less than three months at inception are show within cash and cash 
equivalents on the Balance Sheet.  At 31 March 2018 temporary lending comprised: 

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

Money market and temporary cash deposits
Banks  - 6,000
Building societies  -  -
Local Authorities 1,001 2,001
Other  -  -

                              
Total temporary lending 1,001 8,001                              
Represented  by:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,001  -
Short term investments  - 8,001

 

 

19. Debtors and Prepayments 
 

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

Short term debtors:
Central government bodies (includes pension top up grant) 6,021 5,717
Other local authorities 2,361 2,713
NHS bodies 3 190
Other entities and individuals 1,212 1,182
Prepayments 2,820 2,929

                              
Balance at 31 March 12,418 12,731                              
Long term debtors:
Other local authorities 950 1,148                              

 

 

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

Imprest accounts 50 50
Bank current accounts 391 22
Instant access deposits with banks 3,013 797
Deposit with a maturity date less than 3 months from acquisition 1,001  -

                              
Balance at 31 March 4,455 869                              

 



 

   

 
PCC for Suffolk 71 Notes to the Financial Statements 

21. Assets Held for Sale 
 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 513  -  -  -

Assets newly classified as held for sale:
Property, plant and equipment 565 513  -  -

Revaluation Adjustment
Property, plant and equipment 1

Assets declassifed as held for sale:
Property, plant and equipment  -  -  -  -

Assets sold (448)  -  -  -
                                                            

Balance at 31 March 631 513  -  -                                                            

Current Non-current

 

22. Creditors 
 

Group and PCC: 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 £000 £000

Short term creditors:
Central government bodies 2,596 2,223 2,596 2,223
Other local authorities 2,573 2,648 2,573 2,648
NHS Bodies 287 263 287 263
Other entities and individuals 5,129 5,641 4,420 4,911                                                            
Balance at 31 March 10,585 10,776 9,876 10,046                                                            

Group PCC
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23. Contingent Liabilities 
 

MMI Ltd 

The insurance company Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI) ceased trading in 1992 and ceased 
to write new or renew policies.  Potentially claims can still be received as the company continues to 
settle outstanding liabilities.  A scheme of arrangement is in place, however this arrangement will not 
meet the full liability of all claims and a current levy of 25% will be chargeable in respect of successful 
claims on MMI’s customers.  There are currently no open claims against Suffolk Constabulary.  At this 
point in time, it is not possible to calculate the full amount payable on future MMI claims. 

Capped Overtime Claims 

The organisation has a liability in respect of historic overtime claims including Covert Human 
Intelligence Source (CHIS) handlers and those of a similar nature. Officers from Devon and Cornwall 
Constabulary claimed successfully in the County Court (October 2013) that they were owed payments 
under Police Regulations 2003. Their claims were upheld at the Court of Appeal. The claims relate to a 
cap being placed on overtime claims by the Chief Constable. Overtime caps were generally applied 
across the Police Service for CHIS and other claims. Overtime claims relating to officers working 
collaboratively within ERSOU are currently being assessed. At this point in time it is unclear whether 
Suffolk Constabulary will be liable to a proportion of the claims associated with ERSOU officers 
employed by Suffolk Constabulary or by other forces.  A national agreement is being pursued.  The 
claims primarily cover the period when the units were under joint collaborative control with Norfolk 
Constabulary, therefore where applicable any settlements will be shared in the appropriate cost sharing 
ratio.  

Pension Regulations – Unlawful Discrimination 

The Chief Constable of Suffolk, along with the other Chief Constables and the Home Office, currently 
has 67 claims lodged against them with the Central London Employment Tribunal.  The claims are in 
respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension 
Regulations 2015. Claims of unlawful discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to 
the Judiciary and Firefighters Pension regulations. In the case of the Judiciary claims the claimants 
were successful and in the Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these 
judgements are subject to appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of the claims by 
officers. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a preliminary or substantive Police hearing. Legal advice 
suggests that there is a strong defence against the claims by officers. The quantum and who will bear 
the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are partially or fully successful. For these reasons, no provision 
has been made in the 2017/18 Accounting Statements. 

Forensic Service Uncertainty 

The validity of evidence provided by a forensic testing company to the police service is currently under 
investigation.  It is reasonable to anticipate that some people may have been convicted of offences 
based on flawed data and that conviction will have had a significant impact on their personal 
circumstances.  As a result some kind of litigation is anticipated.  At this point in time it is not possible 
to assess the number of claims or the financial exposure arising from them.   

24. Provisions 
 

Insurance 

The PCC self-insures a number of risks up to a predetermined limit with insurance only being bought 
externally to cover losses beyond this.  This provision is in place to finance any liabilities or losses that 
are likely to be incurred but uncertain as to the amounts or the dates on which they will arise.   
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Exit Packages 

The exit package provision balance as at 31 March 2018 was to provide for 15 members of staff given 
notice prior to 1 April 2018 but who will not leave the Constabulary until after 31 March 2018.  The 
balance also includes pension strain costs yet to be paid for 5 employees.   

Balance Balance
1 April Charge Paid 31 March

2017 in year in year 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Restated

Insurance claims 1,032 535 (490) 1,078
Exit packages  - 398 (148) 250
Other liability provisions 139 11 (50) 100
Other revenue provisions  - 474  - 474                                                            
Total 1,171 1,419 (688) 1,902

                                                            

 

25. Leases 
 

All significant leases have been assessed to identify the appropriate lease category.   

Operating Lease as Lessee: 

The PCC has a number of properties on short term lease arrangements which have been accounted 
for as operating leases.  The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in 
future years are: 

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 £000

Not later than one year 98 108
later than one year but not later than five years 137 189
later than five years 7 9                              

242 305                              

 

 

The amount charged to the service lines in respect of operating leases amounts to: 

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 121 195
Contingent rents 122 128                              

243 323                              
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26. Earmarked Balances within the General Fund 
 

The movements in earmarked balances in 2017/18 are analysed as follows: 

Balance Balance
1 April 31 March

2017 Received Applied Reallocated 2018
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue reserves:
Budget reserve (a) 3,937 8 (1,913) (2,032)  -
Change Reserve (b)  -  - (878) 2,265 1,388
Capital Financing Reserve (c)  -  - (178) 1,267 1,089
Specified purposes fund (d) 240 372 (240)  - 372
Crime & Disorder reserve (e) 366  - (147)  - 219
PCC reserve (f) 410  - (29) 380
Safety Camera Reserve (g) 885 436 (415)  - 906

                                                                           
Total 5,838 816 (3,801) 1,500 4,354                                                                           

                                                                           
General Reserve 5,000  -  - (1,500) 3,500                                                                           

 

(a) Budget Reserve 
This reserve is being held as a contingency against future demand led pressures and would 
also act as a contingency to increases of assessed insurance liabilities in excess of insurance 
budgets and provisions. An element of the reserve is being transferred to the Change reserve 
to fund the cost of change.   
 

(b) Change Reserve 
 This reserve is used to fund the cost of change and/or to pump prime invest-to-save activities. 
 
(c) Capital Financing Reserve  
 This reserve is used to fund the short-life asset element of the Capital Programme when the 

amount required for investing/ refreshing in modernising technologies exceeds budget available 
for this purpose. 

 
(d) Specified Purposes Fund 

This Fund relates to funds allocated for specific purposes including partnership funding. 
 

(e) Crime and Disorder Reserve 
 This reserve is made up from underspends against the PCC’s Commissioning budget which 

have been earmarked to fund future commissioning initiatives. 
 
(f) PCC Reserve 

This reserve is made up from previous underspends against the budget for the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner 
 

(g) Safety Camera Reserve 
This reserve is made up of prior years’ underspends against the approved annual budget. The 
use is reviewed and agreed at the Safety Camera Partnership Board.   
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27. Unusable Reserves 
 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.   
 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General 
Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual 
leave entitlement.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised 
by transfers to and from the account.   
 
The Revaluation Reserve shows the net accumulated unrealised gains on non-current assets arising 
from increases in value, as a result of inflation or other factors.  The reserve is debited to reflect: the 
revaluation element of the depreciation charge, revaluation losses or impairments against previous 
revaluation gains and when assets with accumulated revaluation gains are disposed of.  Any balance 
remaining in the reserve, relating to an asset that has been disposed of, is removed from the reserve 
by way of a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account.   
 
The Capital Adjustment Account accumulates the resources that have been set aside to finance capital 
expenditure.  The consumption of the historical cost by way of depreciation, impairment and disposal is 
removed from the account throughout the asset’s useful life.  The balance on this account therefore 
represents timing differences between financing and consumption of non-current assets.   
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provision.  The Group accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are earned 
by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect benefits earned to 
be financed as the Group makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pay for any 
pensions for which it is directly responsible.  The debit balance on the reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources set aside 
to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that the funding will have been set aside by the 
time the benefits come to be paid.   
 
Movements in unusable reserves are summarised in the Movement in Reserves Statement and are 
shown in detail below: 
 



 

    

 
PCC for Suffolk 76 Notes to the Financial Statements 

Group: 

 

Reval- Capital Collection Deferred Comp' Total
Pension -uation Adj' Fund Adj' Capital Absences Unusable

Group Position Reserves Reserve Account Account Receipts Account Reserves

Year Ended 31 March 2018 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2017 (1,318,985) 6,471 15,779 878 1,149 (731) (1,295,439)
                                                                                                               

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Other comprehensive income and expenditure 11,516 1,468  -  -  -  - 12,985
                                                                                                             

Total comprehensive income and expenditure 11,516 1,468  -  -  -  - 12,985
                                                                                                             

Amortisation of intangible assets  -  - (851)  -  -  - (851)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  - (331) (4,011)  -  -  - (4,343)
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment  -  - (1,350)  -  -  - (1,350)

Capital grants and contributions and income in relation to
donated assets credited to the  CIES  -  - 576  -  -  - 576

Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - 116  -  -  - 116
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets  - (227) (427)  -  -  - (654)
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (57,621)  -  -  -  -  - (57,621)
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account  -  -  - (270)  -  - (270)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance  -  - 1,113  -  -  - 1,113
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt  -  - 641  -  -  - 641
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund 20,231  -  -  -  -  - 20,231
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  - 21 21
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  -  - 819  -  -  - 819

Adjustments between accounting basis and                                                                                                          
funding basis under regulations (37,390) (558) (3,376) (270)  - 21 (41,573)

                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                   

Increase / (decrease) in year (25,873) 910 (3,376) (270)  - 21 (28,589)                                                                                                                   

Balance at 31 March 2018 (1,344,859) 7,380 12,403 607 1,149 (710) (1,324,028)                                                                                                                   
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Reval- Capital Collection Deferred Comp' Total
Pension -uation Adj' Fund Adj' Capital Absences Unusable

Group Position Reserves Reserve Account Account Receipts Account Reserves

Year Ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016 (1,138,697) 3,879 19,808 1,258 1,309 (708) (1,113,150)
                                                                                                         

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Other comprehensive income and expenditure (148,719) 2,863  -  -  -  - (145,856)
                                                                                                             

Total comprehensive income and expenditure (148,719) 2,863  -  -  -  - (145,856)
                                                                                                             

Amortisation of intangible assets  -  - (833)  -  -  - (833)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  - (271) (3,919)  -  -  - (4,190)
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment  -  - (2,564)  -  -  - (2,564)

Capital grants and contributions and income in relation to
donated assets credited to the  CIES  -  - 641  -  -  - 641

Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - 3  -  -  - 3
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets  -  - (361)  -  -  - (361)
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash  -  -  -  - (160)  - (160)
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (50,681)  -  -  -  -  - (50,681)
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account  -  -  - (380)  -  - (380)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance  -  - 2,043  -  -  - 2,043
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt  -  - 695  -  -  - 695
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund 19,111  -  -  -  -  - 19,111
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  - (22) (22)
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  -  - 263  -  -  - 263

Adjustments between accounting basis and                                                                                                          
funding basis under regulations (31,570) (271) (4,030) (380) (160) (22) (36,434)                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                   
Increase / (decrease) in year (180,289) 2,592 (4,030) (380) (160) (22) (182,290)                                                                                                                   

Balance at 31 March 2017 (1,318,985) 6,471 15,779 878 1,149 (731) (1,295,439)                                                                                                                   
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PCC: 

Reval- Capital Collection Deferred Comp' Total
Pension -uation Adj' Fund Adj' Capital Absences Unusable

PCC Position Reserves Reserve Account Account Receipts Account Reserves

Year Ended 31 March 2018 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2017 (773) 6,471 15,778 878 1,148 (0) 23,502
                                                                                                         

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Other comprehensive income and expenditure 72 1,468  -  -  -  - 1,541
                                                                                                             

Total comprehensive income and expenditure 72 1,468  -  -  -  - 1,541
                                                                                                             

Amortisation of intangible assets  -  - (851)  -  -  - (851)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  - (331) (4,011)  -  -  - (4,343)
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment  -  - (1,350)  -  -  - (1,350)
Capital grants and contributions and income in 
relation to

donated assets credited to the  CIES  -  - 576  -  -  - 576
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - 116  -  -  - 116
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets  - (227) (427)  -  -  - (654)
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon rec    -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (112)  -  -  -  -  - (112)
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account  -  -  - (270)  -  - (270)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance  -  - 1,113  -  -  - 1,113
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt  -  - 641  -  -  - 641
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  -  - 819  -  -  - 819

Adjustments between accounting basis and                                                                                                          
funding basis under regulations (112) (558) (3,376) (270)  -  - (4,319)

                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                   

Increase / (decrease) in year (40) 910 (3,376) (270)  -  - (2,778)                                                                                                                   

Balance at 31 March 2018 (813) 7,381 12,403 608 1,148  - 20,724                                                                                                                   
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Reval- Capital Collection Deferred Comp' Total
Pension -uation Adj' Fund Adj' Capital Absences Unusable

PCC Position Reserves Reserve Account Account Receipts Account Reserves

Year Ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016 (1,358) 3,879 19,808 1,258 1,309 (0) 24,897
                                                                                                         

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 
(accounting basis)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Other comprehensive income and expenditure 660 2,863  -  -  -  - 3,523
                                                                                                             

Total comprehensive income and expenditure 660 2,863  -  -  -  - 3,523
                                                                                                             

Amortisation of intangible assets  -  - (833)  -  -  - (833)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  - (271) (3,919)  -  -  - (4,190)
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment  -  - (2,564)  -  -  - (2,564)
Capital grants and contributions and income in 
relation to

donated assets credited to the  CIES  -  - 641  -  -  - 641
Application of capital grants from unapplied account  -  - 3  -  -  - 3
Net gain or loss on the sale of non-current assets  -  - (361)  -  -  - (361)
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon rec    -  -  -  - (160)  - (160)
Difference between IAS 19 pension costs and those

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (75)  -  -  -  -  - (75)
Movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account  -  -  - (380)  -  - (380)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance  -  - 2,043  -  -  - 2,043
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt  -  - 695  -  -  - 695
Contribution to the Police Pension Fund  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Movement on  the Compensated Absences Account  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Use of capital receipts to fund asset purchases  -  - 263  -  -  - 263

Adjustments between accounting basis and                                                                                                          
funding basis under regulations (75) (271) (4,030) (380) (160)  - (4,918)                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                   
Increase / (decrease) in year 585 2,592 (4,030) (380) (160)  - (1,395)                                                                                                                   

Balance at 31 March 2017 (773) 6,471 15,778 878 1,148 (0) 23,502                                                                                                                   
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28. Movements in Cash 
 

1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March
2016 2017 2017 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

4,683 869 Cash and cash equivalents 869 4,455
                                                            

4,683 869 Cash inflows 869 4,455                                                            
(3,814) Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,585                              

 

29. Cash Flow Statement – Investing and Financing Activities 
 

£000 £000

Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

3,994 Purchase of non current assets 2,612
Other payments for investing activities

8,000 Purchase of short-term or long term investments  -
(103) Proceeds from the sale of non currents assets (819)

(7,000) Proceeds from short-term or long-term investments (8,000)
(834) Other receipts from investing activities (439)

                              
4,057 Cash outflow (6,646)

                              

Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

(2,000) Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing
 - Other receipts from financing activities  -

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating
386 to finance leases and on balance sheet PFI contracts 327
284 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 2,338

                              
(1,330) Cash outflow 2,665                              

2016/17 2017/18
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30. Reconciliation of Revenue Cash Flow 
 

Group: 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustment for non cash or cash equivalent items 
within deficit on provision of services:

7,586 Depreciation and impairments 6,544
258 Profit and loss on disposal of fixed assets (165)

31,570 Movements on pension liability 37,390
 -  - Other  -

                              
39,413 43,769

1,153 Increase/(decrease) in revenue creditors (154)
(2,301) Decrease/(increase) in revenue debtors 509

(6) Decrease/(increase) in stocks (3)
(667) Increase/(decrease) in revenue provisions 731
 - Increase/(decrease) in grants received in advance  -

(1,822)                               1,083
                              

37,592 44,852
                              

The cash flows for operating activities include:
2,816 Interest paid and similar charges 2,577
(123) Interest received (128)

2016/17 2017/18

 

 

PCC: 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustment for non cash or cash equivalent items 
within deficit on provision of services:

7,586 Depreciation and impairments 6,544
258 Profit and loss on disposal of fixed assets (165)

76 Movements on pension liability 113
 - Other  -

                              
7,919 6,493

1,130 Increase/(decrease) in revenue creditors (133)
(2,301) Decrease/(increase) in revenue debtors 509

(6) Decrease/(increase) in stocks (3)
(667) Increase/(decrease) in revenue provisions 731
 - Increase/(decrease) in grants received in advance  -

(1,844)                               1,104
                              

6,075 7,596
                              

The cash flows for operating activities include:
2,816 Interest paid and similar charges 2,577
(123) Interest received (128)

2016/17 2017/18

 



 

   

 
PCC for Suffolk 82 Notes to the Financial Statements 

31. Financial Instruments 
 

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

31.3.18 31.3.17 31.3.18 31.3.17

£000 £000 £000 £000

Investments
Loans and receivables 1,001 8,001 - -                                                            
Total Investments 1,001 8,001 - -                                                            
Debtors 
Balances per Balance Sheet 12,418 12,731 950 1,148
Balances relating to council tax (1,598) (1,713) - -
Prepayments (2,820) (2,929) - -
VAT (503) (727) - -
Home Office pensions grant debtor (3,697) (4,590) - -                                                            
Debtors classified as loans and receivables 3,799 2,773 950 1,148                                                            
Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 455 2,000 7,751 8,508                                                            

455 2,000 7,751 8,508                                                            
Other long term liabilities
PFI and finance lease liabilities 356 327 23,107 23,463                                                            

356 327 23,107 23,463                                                            
Creditors
Balances per Balance Sheet 10,585 10,776 0 126
Balances relating to council tax (990) (835) - -
Balances relating to compensated absences (709) (730) - -
Third party funds (451) (252) - -
Home Office pensions grant creditor (103) (96) - -
Balances relating to HMRC (2,225) (2,114) - -
Receipts in sdvance (288) (253) - -
PIC deferred service credit (370) (386) - -                                                            
Creditors classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost 5,450 6,110 0 126                                                            

Current Long Term

 

Included within short term borrowing in 2016/17 is an amount of £2m which was borrowed at the end 
of the year for cash flow purposes due to the maturity profile of short term investments.  No such 
borrowing was required in 2017/18.   
 
£1m shown as loans and receivables above is shown as cash & cash equivalents in the balance 
sheet as it has a maturity of less than 3 months at inception.    
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The gains and losses recognised in the CIES are shown in the table below: 

Financial Financial
Liabilities at Loans and Liabilities at Loans and

amortised cost receivables Total amortised cost receivables Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Expense
Interest expense 2,417             -                2,417 2,457            -                2,457
Contingent rent on PFI 195                -                195 351               -                351                                                                                          
Total expense in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 2,612             -                2,612        2,808            -                2,808                                                                                                  
Income
Interest income -                      (94) (94) -                    (96) (96)                                                                                          
Total income in Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services -                      (94) (94) -                    (96) (96)                                                                                          

2017/18 2016/17

 

 

All financial liabilities and financial assets held by the PCC are classified as loans and receivables and 
long term debtors and creditors and are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair value 
can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the 
remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions.   

• For PWLB loans, the cash flows are discounted using the premature repayment rates 
applicable at the year-end equivalent loans 

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised 
• Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed to be 

approximate to fair value 
• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount 

The fair values of financial instruments that differ from the carrying amount are summarised below: 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial liabilities
PWLB loan 8,206 10,570 8,508 11,413                                                            

8,206 10,570 8,508 11,413                                                            

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

 

The fair value of borrowings in 2017/18 is higher than the carrying amount because the rates payable 
for the PWLB loans are higher than the prevailing rate at the balance sheet date.  This shows a notional 
future loss (based on economic conditions at 31 March 2018) arising from a commitment to pay interest 
to lenders above current market rates.   
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Fair Value Hierarchy for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that Are Not Measured at Fair 
Value 

 

Quoted prices Other Significant
in active significant un-

markets for observable observable
Recurring fair value identical assets inputs inputs
measurements using: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

31 March 2018
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
PWLB loan 10,570 10,570
Long term creditors - -
PFI and finance lease liabilities 23,463 23,463                                                            
Total - 34,033 - 34,033                                                            
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Other loans and receivables 5,750 5,750                                                            
Total - 5,750 - 5,750                                                            

31 March 2017
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
PWLB loan 11,413 11,413
Long term creditors 126 126
PFI and finance lease liabilities 23,790 23,790                                                            
Total - 35,329 - 35,329                                                            
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Other loans and receivables 11,922 11,922                                                            
Total - 11,922 - 11,922                                                            

 

The PCC’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

• Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the PCC 
• Liquidity risk – the possibility that the PCC might not have funds available to meet its 

commitments to make payments 
• Refinancing and Maturity risk – the possibility that the PCC might be requiring to renew a 

financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms 
• Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the PCC as a result of changes in 

such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.   

The PCC’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services.  Risk 
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management is carried out by a central treasury team, under policies approved by the PCC in the annual 
Investment and Treasury Strategy.  The PCC provides written principles for overall risk management, 
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk and the investment of surplus 
cash.   

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the 
PCC’s customers.  Deposits are not made with banks, financial institutions and other local authorities 
unless they meet the minimum criteria specified in the Annual Investment and Treasury Strategy, which 
requires that counterparties meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s Credit Rating Services.  In 2017/18, the PCC has a policy not to lend 
any more than £10m to any individual financial institution, authority or banking group.   

The PCC uses the credit worthiness services provided by Link Asset Services.  This service uses a 
sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies forming the core 
element.  However, it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses 
the following as overlays: 

• Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies 
• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings 
• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.   

The PCC’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in bank and building societies 
cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay 
the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is 
rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of non-recoverability applies to all 
of the PCC’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2018 that this was likely to crystallise.   

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the PCC does not expect any losses 
from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.   

Of the £717k outstanding from customers, £200k was past its due date for payment at the year-end.  
The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows: 

Amount Amount 
Due Due

31.3.18 31.3.17
£000 £000

Less than three months 14 110
Three to six months 2  -
Six months to one year 18 6
More than one year 166 135                                  

200 252                                  

 

Liquidity risk 

The PCC manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures set out in the Annual 
Investment and Treasury Strategy, and the approval of weekly treasury monitoring reports, as well as 
through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice.  
This seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed.   

If unexpected movements happen the PCC has ready access to borrowings from the money markets 
and the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  The PCC is also required to provide a balanced budget 
through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover 
annual expenditure.  There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet 
its commitments under financial instruments.  The PCC has one loan with the PWLB that was taken out 
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for £10m in 2010/11, it is being paid off in half year instalments.  The loan is due to mature in 2035/36.  
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.   

Refinancing and Maturity risk 

The PCC maintains its debt and investment portfolio in line with the Annual Investment and Treasury 
Strategy.  Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk 
procedures, longer-term risk to the PCC relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial 
instruments as they mature.  This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and 
longer term financial assets.   

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on 
investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this 
risk.  The PCC approved Annual Investment and Treasury Strategy addresses the main risks and the 
treasury management function addresses the operational risks within the approved parameters.   

The PCC’s financial assets held on the balance sheet all mature within one year with the exception of 
the long-term debtor in relation to NPAS.  Refer to Note 32 for more detail.   

Market risk – Interest risk 

The PCC has no significant exposure to market risk from investments.  Investments are normally by 
way of term deposits placed at a fixed rate for a fixed period, therefore there is a risk that the market 
rate can change, which would lead to an impact on the fair value of the investment.  However 
investments are mostly placed for periods not exceeding three months, therefore the exposure to 
market risk is regarded as negligible.   

The PCC has mitigated its exposure to market risk in regards to interest expense by fixing the interest 
rate payable for the duration of its loans.  The risk is therefore shifted to the risk on the movement of 
fair value that would arise when prevailing rates differ from contract rate payable.  However, borrowings 
are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains or losses on fixed rate borrowing do not impact on the 
CIES.   

A 1% increase in interest rates would only have a material effect on the fair value of borrowings.  It 
would reduce the liability by £821k.   

Market risk – price risk 

The PCC does not invest in equity shares and therefore has no exposure to price risk.   

Market risk – exchange risk 

The PCC has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no 
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.   

32. Collaborative Arrangements 
 

Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies have implemented and are developing ways in which both forces 
can work together to improve performance and to make financial savings.  Currently, from a 
collaborative point of view, the forces are focusing on Protective Services, Justice Services, Business 
Support and from April 2015, elements of County Policing.  At 31 March 2018 significant progress 
towards fully collaborated units had been made, with many units working as joint departments, with 
operational cost sharing, while other units currently only share common management costs.  Although 
both forces control their own financial arrangements in respect of these units, an agreement was drawn 
up to enable certain costs to be shared on an agreed ratio.  The PCC regards these units as Jointly 
Controlled Operations.  The agreed shared costs of fully collaborated units that arose during the year 
was as follows: 
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Business Justice Protective County
Support Services Services Policing Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2017/18
Suffolk PCC 16,372 9,924 15,170 1,263 42,729
Norfolk PCC 21,615 13,101 20,028 1,667 56,411                                                                           
Total shared running costs 37,987 23,025 35,198 2,930 99,140                                                                           

2016/17
Suffolk PCC 16,816 8,955 15,396 1,023 42,190
Norfolk PCC 22,110 11,774 20,242 1,345 55,472                                                                           
Total shared running costs 38,927 20,728 35,638 2,368 97,662                                                                           

 

West Yorkshire Police is the lead force for the National Police Air Service (NPAS). During 2012/13 all 
owned airframes (including the one owned by the former Suffolk Police Authority) transferred to the 
ownership of the Commissioner for West Yorkshire while leased airframes remained in the ownership 
of the lessor but the lease costs transferred. 

The PCCs retained ownership of all freehold airbases, but some leases for airbases were novated to 
the Commissioner for West Yorkshire. 

Police staff engaged in provision of the service were employed by the Commissioner and police officers 
were seconded to West Yorkshire Police. Expenditure relating to NPAS incurred by forces will be 
charged to West Yorkshire and they will charge forces for the service. The Home Office provide capital 
grant to cover the capital investment required. 

The service is governed by a section 22A collaboration agreement and is under the control of a Strategic 
Board made up of Commissioners and Chief Constables from each region. The Board determines the 
budget and the charging policy and monitors performance. 

During the year £403k was payable to West Yorkshire PCC in respect of the NPAS service provided. 
At 31 March 2018 West Yorkshire PCC owed Suffolk PCC £1.15m in respect of the Suffolk airframe. 
The balance is due to be paid in annual instalments up until 2024/25. 

On 1 April 2010, police forces within the Eastern Region entered into a collaborative agreement called 
the Eastern Region Specialist Operations Unit (ERSOU); Bedfordshire act as the lead PCC.  The net 
expenditure incurred by each force is as follows: 
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Total Total
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000

Operating costs 17,908 16,089
Specific Home Office grant (2,997) (2,676)
Other income  -  -

Net expenditure 14,911 13,414                              
Contributions from forces:
Bedfordshire (1,692) (1,828)
Cambridgeshire (2,152) (2,357)
Essex (1,289) (916)
Hertfordshire (3,049) (3,301)
Kent (1,563) (406)
Norfolk (2,478) (2,671)
Suffolk (1,877) (2,040)                              
Deficit/ (Surplus) for the year 810 (106)                              

Suffolk underspend held in Balance Sheet 122 13

33. Post Balance Sheet Events

Post balance sheet events have been considered for the period from the year-end to the date the 
accounts were authorised for issue on 20th September 2018.   

No adjusting events have occurred that require restatement of the Statement of Accounts.  

34. Capital Commitments

Significant commitments under capital contracts as at 31 March 2018 are analysed as follows: 

2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000

291 CCR telephony 265
 - Estates Strategy 500
 - ANPR equipment 217
 - ESN ICCS Upgrade 227
 - Vehicles 453

99 Intranet 29
102 Athena 172
109 Other 44

600 Total committed 1,908                              
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Police Pension Fund Accounting Statements 
Fund Account 

£000 £000 £000 £000
Contributions receivable
Employer

8,399 Normal 8,321
538 Early retirements 508

 - Other - 30+ payments  -                                  
8,937 8,829

Members
5,406 Normal 5,323                                  

5,406 5,323
Transfers in

218 Individual transfers in from other schemes 339
 - Other  -                                  

218 339
Benefits payable

(26,834) Pensions (28,093)
(7,921) Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits (7,442)

(15) Lump sum death benefits (86)
 - Other (193)                                  

(34,769) (35,814)

(4) Refunds on contributions (7)
(42) Individual transfers out to other schemes (34)
 - Other  -                                  

(46) (41)                                  
(20,255) Net amount payable for the year before (21,364)

contribution from the Police General Fund

19,111 Contribution from the Police General Fund 20,231
1,144 Additional funding payable by the local  policing body 1,133                                  
 - Net balance receivable for the year  -                                  

2017/182016/17

 

The actuarial valuation has set the employer contribution rate for all three police pension schemes from 
1 April 2017 at 21.3% of pensionable pay.  The difference between the old employer contribution rate 
of 24.2% and the new rate will be retained by the Exchequer by means of a reduction in the pensions 
top-up grant from the Home Office, therefore the actual cost to the Constabulary of the employer’s 
contribution is still 24.2%.   

Net Assets and Liabilities 

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000

Net current assets 

Net balance receivable from the Police General Fund  -  -                                  
 -  -                                  
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Glossary of terms 
 

For the purposes of the statement of accounts the following definitions have been adopted: 

Accruals basis 

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money 
is received or paid. 

Actual return on plan assets 

The difference between the fair value of plan assets at the end of the period and the fair value at the 
beginning of the period, adjusted for contributions and payments of benefits. 

Actuarial gains and losses 

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because: 

a) Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuations 
(experience gains and losses) or 

b) The actuarial assumptions have changed 
 
Capital expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset; or expenditure which adds to – rather than merely 
maintains – the value of an existing non-current asset. 
 
Capital Receipt 
Income derived from the sale or disposal of a non-current asset. 
 
CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 
 
Contingent liability 
A contingent liability is either: 

a) A possible obligation arising from past events; it may be confirmed only if particular events 
happen in the future that are not wholly within the local authority’s control; or 

b) A present obligation arising from past events, where economic transactions are unlikely to be 
involved or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

 
Current Service Costs 
The increase in pension liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year. 
 
Defined benefit scheme 
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not 
directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including 
notionally funded). 
 
Depreciation 
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of a non-
current asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other 
changes.  
 
Government grants 
Part of the cost of service is paid for by central government from its own tax income. Specific grants are 
paid by the Home Office to the Group towards both revenue and capital expenditure. 
 
Group 
The term Group refers to the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Suffolk and the Chief Constable 
(CC) for Suffolk. 
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Impairment 
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 
 
Intangible non-current assets 
Intangible assets are non-financial non-current assets that do not have physical substance, but are 
identifiable and are controlled by the PCC through custody or legal rights. 
 
Net book value 
The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet, meaning their historical cost 
or current value less the cumulative amounts allowed for depreciation. 
 
Net realisable value 
The open-market value of the asset in its existing use (or open-market value in the case of non-
operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Non-current assets 
Tangible and intangible assets that yield benefits to the PCC and the services it provides for more than 
one year. 
 
Outturn 
The actual amount spent in the financial year. 
 
Operational assets 
Non-current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the PCC in the direct delivery of services 
for which it has a statutory or discretionary responsibility. 
 
Past Service Costs 
The increase in pension liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect 
relates to year of service earned in earlier years. 
 
PCC 
Reference to PCC within these Financial Statements relate to the entity of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Suffolk unless otherwise stated. 
 
Projected Unit Credit Method 
An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected 
earnings.  
 
An accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the 
valuation date relate to: 

a) The benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be 
active members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, 
allowing where appropriate for future increases, and 

b) The accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date. 
  
The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or 
not. Guidance on the projected unit method is given in the Guidance Note GN26 issued by the Faculty 
and Institute of Actuaries. 
 
Precept 
The proportion of the budget raised from council tax. 
 
Provision 
Amount set aside to provide for a liability which is likely to be incurred, but the exact amount and the 
date on which it will arise is uncertain. 
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PWLB 
The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is a statutory body operating within the United Kingdom Debt 
Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury. PWLB’s function is to lend money from the 
National Loans Fund to local authorities and other prescribed bodies and to collect the repayments. 
 
Related parties 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 

a) One party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or 
b) The parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 
c) One party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party so that 

the other party might not always feel free to pursue its own separate interests; or 
d) The parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such 

an extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that 
are payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits 
payable as a result of either (i) an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before 
the normal retirement date or (ii) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange 
for those benefits, because these are not given in exchange for services rendered by employees. 
 
Scheme Liabilities 
The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities 
measured using the projected unit credit method reflect the benefits that the employer is committed to 
provide for service up to the valuation date. 
 
Settlement 
An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary 
responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the 
assets used to effect the settlement. Settlements include: 

a) a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive 
specified pension benefits:  

b) the purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits: and 
c) the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the 

scheme. 
 
Useful life 
The period over which the PCC will derive benefits from the use of a non-current asset. 
 
Vested Rights 
In relation to a defined benefit scheme, these are: 

a) for active members, benefits to which they would unconditionally be entitled to on leaving the 
scheme; 

b) for deferred pensioners, their preserved benefits; 
c) for pensioners, pensions to which they are entitled. 

Vested rights include where appropriate the related benefits for spouses or other dependants. 
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